MICROFINANCIAL INC Form 10-Q August 15, 2011

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549 FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2011

or

• TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File No. 1-14771 MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Massachusetts (State or other jurisdiction of

04-2962824

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

incorporation or organization)

16 New England Executive Park, Suite 200, Burlington, MA 01803

(Address of principal executive offices)

(781) 994-4800

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(b) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. b Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). b Yes o No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See definition of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (check one).

Large accelerated filer o	Accelerated filer o	Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting	Smaller reporting company þ
		company)	

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). o Yes b No

As of July 31, 2011, 14,257,324 shares of the registrant s common stock were outstanding.

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED TABLE OF CONTENTS

Part I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

EX-101 DEFINITION LINKBASE DOCUMENT

Item 1.	Financial Statements (unaudited):	
	<u>Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets</u> June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income Three and six months ended June 30,	3
	2011 and 2010	4
	<u>Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders</u> Equity Six months ended June 30, <u>2011 and the twelve months ended December 31, 2010</u> <u>Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows</u> Six months ended June 30, 2011 and	5
	2010 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	6 7
<u>Item 2.</u>	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	15
<u>Item 3.</u>	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	24
<u>Item 4.</u>	Controls and Procedures	24
Part II OTHER	<u>R INFORMATIO</u> N	
<u>Item 1.</u>	Legal Proceedings	25
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	25
<u>Item 2.</u>	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	25
<u>Item 6.</u>	Exhibits	26
Signatures EX-31.1 EX-31.2 EX-32.1 EX-32.2 EX-101 INSTANCE		27
	ATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT	
	<u>INKBASE DOCUMENT</u> ATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT	

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data) (Unaudited)

			D	ecember
	June 3	30,		31,
	201	1		2010
ASSETS				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 4	434	\$	1,528
Restricted cash	ç	979		753
Net investment in leases:				
Receivables due in installments	193,3			191,067
Estimated residual value	22,6			21,832
Initial direct costs	1,4	420		1,490
Less:				
Advance lease payments and deposits		503)		(3,479)
Unearned income	(58,9	-		(59,245)
Allowance for credit losses	(12,8	395)		(13,132)
Net investment in leases	141,9) 03		138,533
Investment in rental contracts, net	-	732		461
Property and equipment, net		083		800
Other assets	1,2	219		1,530
Total assets	\$ 147,3	350	\$	143,605
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY				
Revolving line of credit	\$ 59,5	574	\$	62,650
Accounts payable		512	Ψ	2,435
Capital lease obligation	_,-	6		26
Dividends payable		12		5
Other liabilities	3.2	222		1,375
Deferred income taxes		518		7,627
Total liabilities	74,9) 44		74,118
Stockholders equity: Preferred stock, \$.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued at June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 Common stock, \$.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 14,231,692 and				
14,231,933 shares issued at June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively	1	142		142
Additional paid-in capital	46,5			46,475
Retained earnings	25,7			22,870
Total stockholders equity	72,4	406		69,487
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 147,3	350	\$	143,605

Table of Contents

р

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except share and per share data) (Unaudited)

		Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,			ded
		2011		2010	2011			2010
Revenues: Income on financing leases Rental income Income on service contracts	\$	9,136 2,073 103	\$	8,509 1,920 132	\$	18,237 4,079 211	\$	16,631 3,878 273
Loss and damage waiver fees		1,220		1,119		2,421		2,223
Service fees and other		931		941		1,863		1,934
Total revenues		13,463		12,621		26,811		24,939
Expenses:								
Selling, general and administrative		4,037		3,581		7,990		6,811
Provision for credit losses		4,251 783		5,562 474		9,003		12,493 902
Depreciation and amortization Interest		783 680		474 885		1,464 1,343		902 1,696
Interest		080		005		1,545		1,090
Total expenses		9,751		10,502		19,800		21,902
Income before provision for income taxes		3,712		2,119		7,011		3,037
Provision for income taxes		1,429		818		2,699		1,171
Net income	\$	2,283	\$	1,301	\$	4,312	\$	1,866
Net income per common share basic	\$	0.16	\$	0.09	\$	0.30	\$	0.13
Net income per common share diluted	\$	0.16	\$	0.09	\$	0.30	\$	0.13
Weighted-average shares: Basic	14	4,231,692	14	4,230,670	14	4,239,180	14	4,220,529
Diluted	14	4,503,702	14	4,452,575	14	4,495,745	14	4,432,535

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

(In thousands, except share and per share data) (Unaudited)

	Common S Shares	Stock Amount	Additional Paid-in Capital	Retained Earnings	Sto	Total ckholders Equity
Balance at December 31, 2009	14,174,326	\$ 142	\$ 46,197	\$ 20,426	\$	66,765
Stock issued for deferred						
compensation	88,269		295			295
Stock-based compensation			112			112
Amortization of unearned						
compensation	3,750		10			10
Stock repurchase program	(34,412)		(139)			(139)
Common stock dividends (\$0.20 per						
share)				(2,852)		(2,852)
Net income				5,296		5,296
Balance at December 31, 2010	14,231,933	142	46,475	22,870		69,487
Stock issued for deferred						
compensation	51,642		212			212
Stock-based compensation	(51.000)		68			68
Stock repurchase program	(51,883)		(240)			(240)
Common stock dividends (\$0.10 per				(1, 122)		(1, 122)
share)				(1,433)		(1,433)
Net income				4,312		4.312
Balance at June 30, 2011	14,231,692	\$ 142	\$ 46,515	\$ 25,749	\$	72,406
The community a metre and an int	a anal mant of the se	man had an	damaad aamaalida	tad financial a	****	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

(In thousands) (Unaudited)

	Six Mont June	
	2011	2010
Cash flows from operating activities: Cash received from customers	\$ 52.460	\$ 11029
	\$ 52,469	\$ 44,928 (7.824)
Cash paid to suppliers and employees Cash paid for income taxes	(9,240) (238)	(7,824) (951)
Interest paid	(1,229)	(1,173)
Interest paid Interest received	(1,229)	(1,173)
	1	1
Net cash provided by operating activities	41,763	34,981
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Investment in lease and rental contracts	(36,635)	(38,857)
Investment in direct costs	(498)	(575)
Investment in property and equipment	(734)	(62)
Net cash used in investing activities	(37,867)	(39,494)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Proceeds from secured debt	48,729	50,933
Repayment of secured debt	(51,805)	(43,823)
Payment of debt closing costs	(2)	
Increase in restricted cash	(226)	(24)
Repayment of capital lease obligation	(20)	(33)
Repurchase of common stock	(240)	
Payment of dividends	(1,426)	(1,421)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities	(4,990)	5,632
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	(1,094)	1,119
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	1,528	391
	1,020	071
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 434	\$ 1,510
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities: Net income Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:	\$ 4,312	\$ 1,866

Edgar Filing: MICROFINANCIAL INC - Form 10-Q

Amortization of unearned income, net of initial direct costs	(1	8,237)	(1	6,631)
Depreciation and amortization		1,464		902
Provision for credit losses		9,003	1	2,493
Recovery of equipment cost and residual value	2	0,715	3	4,862
Stock-based compensation expense		68		62
Changes in assets and liabilities:				
Current taxes payable		137		(74)
Deferred income taxes		1,991		293
Other assets		311		111
Accounts payable		289		328
Other liabilities		1,710		769
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$ 2	1,763	\$ 3	4,981
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities:				
Acquisition of property and equipment through lease incentives	\$	791	\$	
Fair market value of stock issued for compensation	\$	212	\$	169
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consoli	dated fin	ancial sta	tements	5
6				

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Tables in thousands, except share and per share data)

A. Nature of Business

MicroFinancial Incorporated (referred to as MicroFinancial, we, us or our) operates primarily through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, TimePayment Corp. and LeaseComm Corporation. TimePayment is a specialized commercial finance company that leases and rents microticket equipment and provides other financing services. LeaseComm started originating leases in January 1986 and in October 2002 suspended virtually all originations due to an interruption in financing. TimePayment commenced originating leases in July 2004. The average amount financed by TimePayment during 2010 was approximately \$5,800 compared to the 2011 year to date average of \$6,100. LeaseComm historically financed contracts of approximately \$1,900. We primarily source our originations through a nationwide network of independent equipment vendors, sales organizations and other dealer-based origination networks. We fund our operations through cash provided by operating activities and borrowings under our revolving line of credit.

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission for interim financial statements. Accordingly, our interim statements do not include all of the information and disclosures required for our annual financial statements. In the opinion of our management, the condensed consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, considered necessary for a fair presentation of these interim results. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010. The results for the six months ended June 30, 2011 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year ending December 31, 2011.

The balance sheet at December 31, 2010 has been derived from the audited financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Allowance for Loan Losses and Credit Quality

We maintain an allowance for credit losses on our investment in leases, service contracts and rental contracts at an amount that we believe is sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses in our portfolio. Given the nature of the microticket market and the individual size of each transaction, we do not have a formal credit review committee to review individual transactions. Rather, we developed a sophisticated, multi-tiered pricing model and have automated the credit scoring, approval and collection processes. We believe that with the proper pricing model, we can grant credit to a wide range of applicants provided we have priced appropriately for the associated risk. As a result of approving a wide range of credits, we experience a relatively high level of delinquency and write-offs in our portfolio. We periodically review the credit scoring and approval process to ensure that the automated system is making appropriate credit decisions. Contracts in our portfolio are not re-graded subsequent to the initial extension of credit and the allowance is not allocated to specific contracts. Rather, we view the contracts as having common characteristics and maintain a general allowance against our entire portfolio utilizing historical collection statistics and an assessment of current credit risk in the portfolio as the basis for the amount.

We have adopted a consistent, systematic procedure for establishing and maintaining an appropriate allowance for credit losses for our microticket transactions. We estimate the likelihood of credit losses net of recoveries in the portfolio at each reporting period based upon a combination of the lessee s bureau reported credit score at lease inception and the current delinquency status of the account. In addition to these elements, we also consider other relevant factors including general economic trends, trends in delinquencies and credit losses, static pool analysis of our portfolio, trends in recoveries made on charged off accounts, and other relevant factors which might affect the performance of our portfolio. This combination of historical experience, credit scores, delinquency levels, trends in credit losses, and the review of current factors provide the basis for our analysis of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses. We take charge-offs against our receivables when such receivables are deemed uncollectible. In general

a receivable is uncollectable when it is 360 days past due or earlier, if other adverse events occur with

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Tables in thousands, except share and per share data)

respect to an account. Historically, the typical monthly payment under our microticket leases has been small and as a result, our experience is that lessees will pay past due amounts later in the process because of the relatively small amount necessary to bring an account current.

In 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2010-20, Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses requiring us to provide detailed disclosures about the nature of credit risk inherent in our financing receivables, how we analyze that risk in estimating our allowance for credit losses, and the changes in the allowance for credit losses.

We segregate our lease portfolio between TimePayment Corp. and LeaseComm Corp. to perform the calculation and analysis of the allowance for credit losses. Each subsidiary consists of a single portfolio segment which we refer to as microticket equipment. We take charge-offs against our receivables when such receivables are deemed uncollectible. None of our receivables are placed on nonaccrual status as they are charged off when deemed uncollectible.

Activity in the allowance for credit losses for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

	Six Mont June	
	2011	2010
Allowance for credit losses, beginning	\$ 13,132	\$ 13,856
Provision for credit losses	9,003	12,493
Charge-offs	(11,733)	(14,946)
Recoveries	2,493	2,028
Allowance for credit losses, ending	\$ 12,895	\$ 13,431

The following table reconciles the activity in the allowance for credit losses by portfolio segment at June 30, 2011:

	LeaseC Micro equip		Μ	ePayment licroticket equipment	Total
Allowance for Credit Losses:	ሰ	021	¢	12 001	¢ 12.120
Beginning balance	\$	-	\$	12,901	\$ 13,132
Charge-offs		(394)		(11,339)	(11,733)
Recoveries		641		1,852	2,493
Provisions (credits)		(290)		9,293	9,003
Ending balance	\$	188	\$	12,707	\$ 12,895
Ending balance: Individually evaluated for impairment					
Ending balance: Collectively evaluated for impairment		188		12,707	12,895
Ending balance: Contracts acquired with deteriorated credit quality	1				
Financing Receivables: Ending balance		415		154,383	154,798(1)

Table of Contents

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Tables in thousands, except share and per share data)

Ending balance: Individually evaluated for impairment	LeaseComm Microticket equipment	TimePayment Microticket equipment	Total
Ending balance: Collectively evaluated for impairment	415	154,383	154,798(1)

Ending balance: Contracts acquired with deteriorated credit quality

(1) Total financing receivables include net investment in leases. For purposes of asset quality and allowance calculations, the allowance for credit losses is excluded.

Each period the provision for credit losses in the income statement results from the combination of an estimate by management of credit losses that occurred during the current period and the ongoing adjustment of prior estimates of losses occurring in prior periods.

To serve as a basis for making this provision, we maintain an internally developed proprietary scoring model that considers several factors including the lessee s bureau reported credit score at lease inception. We also consider other relevant factors including general economic trends, trends in delinquencies and credit losses, static pool analysis of our portfolio, trends in recoveries made on charged off accounts, and other relevant factors which might affect the performance of our portfolio. The combination of historical experience, credit scores, delinquency levels, trends in credit losses, and the review of current factors provide the basis for our analysis of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses.

We assign internal risk ratings for all lessees and determine the credit worthiness of each lease based upon this internally developed proprietary scoring model. The LeaseComm portfolio is evaluated in total with a reserve of 50% of the outstanding amount greater than 90 days plus 25% of the amount outstanding from 1 to 89 days as that portfolio is decreasing. For the TimePayment portfolio, the scoring model generates one of nine acceptable risk ratings based upon the credit worthiness of each lease or it rejects the lease application. The scores are assigned at lease inception and these scores are maintained over the lease term regardless of payment performance. To facilitate review and reporting, management aggregates these nine scores into one of three categories with similar risk profiles and delinquency characteristics identified as Gold, Silver or Bronze.

Leases assigned a gold rating represent those transactions which exhibit the highest risk rating based on our internal credit scores. They are considered of sufficient quality to preclude an otherwise adverse rating. Gold rated leases are typically represented by lessees with high bureau reported credit scores at lease inception or are supported by established businesses for those transactions which are not personally guaranteed by the lessee.

Leases assigned a silver rating fall in the middle range of the nine acceptable scores generated by the scoring model. These transactions possess a reasonable amount of risk based on their profile and may exhibit vulnerability to deterioration if adverse factors are encountered. These accounts typically demonstrate adequate coverage but warrant a higher level of monitoring by management to ensure that weaknesses do not advance.

A bronze rating applies to leases at the lower end of the nine acceptable scores generated by the scoring model whereby the lessee may have difficulty meeting the lease obligation if adverse factors are encountered. Bronze rated transactions typically have lower reported credit scores at lease inception and will typically have other less desirable credit attributes.

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tables in thousands, except share and per share data)

The following table presents the aging of the recorded investment in leases as of June 30, 2011, by our internally graded score:

	Current	Past Due	Total
TimePayment Corp. Grade			
Gold	\$ 45,456	\$ 3,625	\$ 49,081
Silver	79,753	18,601	98,354
Bronze	4,485	2,463	6,948
Total	129,694	24,689	154,383
LeaseComm	183	232	415
	100	202	110
Total	\$129,877	\$24,921	\$154,798

The following table presents the aged analysis of past due financing receivables by our internally developed proprietary scoring model in leases as of June 30, 2011:

	Current	31 to 60 days Past Due	61 to 90 days Past Due	Over 90 Days Past Due	Total	Over 90 Days Accruing
LeaseComm:	\$ 183	\$ 11	\$ 8	\$ 213	\$ 415	\$ 213
TimePayment Corp.						
Gold	45,456	1,372	540	1,713	49,081	1,713
Silver	79,753	2,762	2,488	13,351	98,354	13,351
Bronze	4,485	261	294	1,908	6,948	1,908
TimePayment Corp. subtotal	129,694	4,395	3,322	16,972	154,383	16,972
Total	\$129,877	\$4,406	\$3,330	\$17,185	\$154,798	\$17,185
Percent of Total Financing Receivables	83.9%	2.8%	2.2%	11.1%	100%	

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

For financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts payable, and other liabilities, we believe that the carrying amount approximates fair value due to their short-term nature. The fair value of the revolving line of credit is calculated based on the incremental borrowing rates currently available on loans with similar terms and maturities. The fair value of our revolving line of credit at June 30, 2011 approximates its carrying value.

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Tables in thousands, except share and per share data)

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per common share is computed based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per common share gives effect to all potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted net income per share does not assume the issuance of common shares that have an antidilutive effect on net income per common share. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, 409,305 and 499,305 options, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share because their effect would have been antidilutive.

Net income per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

	Three Months Ended Siz June 30,			Months Ended June 30,				
	2011 2010		2011		2	2010		
Net income	\$	2,283	\$	1,301	\$	4,312	\$	1,866
Weighted average common shares outstanding Dilutive effect of common stock options,	14,231,692 14,230,670		14,239,180 14,220,52		220,529			
warrants and restricted stock		272,010		221,905		256,565		212,006
Shares used in computation of net income per common share diluted	14	,503,702	14,	452,575	14	,495,745	14,	432,535
Net income per common share basic	\$	0.16	\$	0.09	\$	0.30	\$	0.13
Net income per common share diluted	\$	0.16	\$	0.09	\$	0.30	\$	0.13

Stock-Based Employee Compensation

Under our 2008 Equity Incentive Plan, we reserved 1,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance. In February 2011, under our 2008 Equity Incentive Plan the Compensation and Benefits Committee of our Board of Directors granted 33,044 restricted stock units to our executive officers. The restricted stock units vest over five years at 25% annually beginning on the second anniversary of the grant date. The restricted stock units were valued on the date of grant and the fair value of these awards was \$4.11 per share. For the six months ended June 30, 2011 the expense related to these units is \$11,000.

The following summarizes stock option activity for the six months ended June 30, 2011:

	01	Deine	Den Classe	Av Ex	vighted- verage kercise
	Shares	Price Per Share		Price	
Outstanding at December 31, 2010	908,028	\$ 1.58	5 to \$13.10	\$	5.07
Granted					
Expired	(90,000)	\$	13.10	\$	13.10

Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: MICROFINANCIAL INC - Form 10-Q

Forfeited

Outstanding at June 30, 2011	818,028	\$	1.585 to \$6.70	\$	4.19
------------------------------	---------	----	-----------------	----	------

In February 2011, we granted our non-employee directors a total of 51,642 shares of stock with immediate vesting and a fair value of \$4.11 per share, for a total grant date fair value of \$212,249, in accordance with our director compensation policy. In February 2010, we granted our non-employee directors a total of 53,844 shares of stock with immediate vesting and a fair value of \$3.15 per share, for a total grant date value of \$169,609, in accordance with our director compensation policy.

During the six months ended June 30, 2011, 90,000 options originally granted to members of the Board of Directors in February 2001 expired. During the six months ended June 30, 2010, 350,000 options originally granted to members of the Board of Directors in February of 2000 expired. There were no options granted or exercised during the six months ended June 30, 2011.

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Tables in thousands, except share and per share data)

The following table summarizes unvested restricted stock activity:

	Restricted Stock Number	Unit	estricted Stock ts Number
	of Shares	of	f Shares
Non-vested at December 31, 2010		\$	33,518
Granted	51,642		33,044
Vested	(51,642)		
Non-vested at June 30, 2011			66,562

During the three months ended June 30, 2011, amortized compensation expense related to the restricted stock units was \$12,000. During the six months ended June 30, 2011, amortized compensation expense related to the restricted stock units was \$22,000.

Information relating to our outstanding stock options at June 30, 2011 is as follows:

		Outstanding			Exerc	isable	
Exercise		Weighted- Average	Intrinsic	Weighted- Average Exercise		Int	rinsic
Price	Shares	Life (Years)	Value	Price	Shares	V	alue
\$ 6.70	235,000	0.66		6.70	235,000		
1.59	150,000	1.41	\$ 592	1.59	150,000	\$	592
5.77	31,923	5.67		5.77			
5.85	142,382	6.58		5.85	71,191		
2.30	258,723	7.67	836	2.30	64,681		209
	818,028	4.24	\$ 1,428	4.56	520,872	\$	801

During the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the total share based employee compensation cost recognized was \$33,000 and \$35,000, respectively. During the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the total share based compensation cost recognized was \$68,000 and \$62,000, respectively. *Dividends*

On January 21, 2011, we declared a dividend of \$0.05 payable on February 15, 2011 to stockholders of record on February 1, 2011.

On April 21, 2011, we declared a dividend of \$0.05 payable on May 13, 2011 to stockholders of record on May 2, 2011.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid instruments purchased with original maturities of less than three months to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risk

We deposit our cash and invest in short-term investments primarily through national commercial banks. Deposits in excess of amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) are exposed to loss in the event of

nonperformance by the institution. The Company maintains cash deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance coverage. **C. Revolving line of credit**

On August 2, 2007, we entered into a three-year revolving line of credit with a bank syndicate led by Sovereign Bank (Sovereign) based on qualified TimePayment lease receivables. The total commitment under the facility was originally \$30 million, and was subsequently increased to \$60 million in July 2008, to \$85 million in February 2009, and most recently to \$100 million in connection with a July 2010 amendment. Outstanding borrowings are collateralized by eligible lease contracts and a security interest in all of our other assets. Prior to the July 2010 amendment, outstanding borrowings bore interest at Prime plus 1.75% or at a London Interbank Offered Rate

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Tables in thousands, except share and per share data)

(LIBOR) plus 3.75%, in each case subject to a minimum rate of 5.00%. Following the July 2010 amendment, outstanding borrowings bear interest at Prime plus 1.25% or LIBOR plus 3.25%, without being subject to any minimum rate. Under the terms of the facility, loans are Prime Rate Loans, unless we elect LIBOR Loans. If a LIBOR Loan is not renewed at maturity it automatically converts to a Prime Rate Loan.

As a part of the July 2010 amendment, the maturity date of the facility was extended to August 2, 2013. At our option upon maturity, the unpaid principal balance may be converted to a six-month term loan.

At June 30, 2011, \$57.0 million of our loans were LIBOR loans and \$2.6 million of our loans were Prime Rate Loans. The interest rate on our loans at June 30, 2011 was between 3.49% and 4.50%. The amount available on our revolving line of credit at June 30, 2011 was \$40.4 million. The revolving line of credit has financial covenants that we must comply with to obtain funding and avoid an event of default. As of June 30, 2011, we were in compliance with all covenants under the revolving line of credit.

D. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Matters

We are involved from time to time in litigation incidental to the conduct of our business. Although we do not expect that the outcome of any of these matters, individually or collectively, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations, litigation is inherently unpredictable. Therefore, judgments could be rendered, or settlements entered, that could adversely affect our operating results or cash flows in a particular period. We routinely assess all of our litigation and threatened litigation as to the probability of ultimately incurring a liability, and record our best estimate of the ultimate loss in situations where we access the likelihood of loss as probable. *Lease Commitments*

We accept lease applications on a daily basis and, as a result, we have a pipeline of applications that have been approved, where a lease has not been originated. Our commitment to lend does not become binding until all of the steps in the lease origination process have been completed, including the receipt of the lease, supporting documentation and verification with the lessee. Since we fund on the same day a lease is verified, we do not have any outstanding commitments to lend.

Stock Repurchase

On August 10, 2010, our Board of Directors approved a common stock repurchase program under which we are authorized to purchase up to 250,000 of our outstanding shares from time to time. The repurchases may take place in either the open market or through block trades. The repurchase program will be funded by our working capital and may be suspended or discontinued at anytime.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 we repurchased and retired 51,883 shares of our common stock under our stock buyback program. We did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during the second quarter of fiscal year 2011.

E. Subsequent Events

We have evaluated all events or transactions that occurred through the date on which we issued these financial statements. Other than the declaration of dividends we did not have any material subsequent events that impacted our consolidated financial statements.

On July 20, 2011, we declared a dividend of \$0.05 payable on August 15, 2011 to shareholders of record on August 1, 2011.

MICROFINANCIAL INCORPORATED NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Tables in thousands, except share and per share data)

F. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. This update provides amendments to FASB 820-10 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures that require new disclosures as follows:

Transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2. A reporting entry should disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and describe the reasons for the transfers.

Activity in level 3 fair value measurements.

A reporting entity should provide fair value measurement disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities. In the reconciliation for fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), a reporting entity should present separately information about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (that is, on a gross basis rather than as one net number). The new disclosures and clarifications of existing disclosures are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements in the rollforward of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements. Those disclosures are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for interim periods within those fiscal years. We adopted the provisions of ASU 2010-6 which are required for the current year and the adoption did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses. This guidance expands the disclosures pertaining to the credit quality of loans and should provide users of the financial statements with a better overall understanding of the credit risk in the loan portfolio. This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods ending after December 15, 2010. We adopted the provisions of ASU 2010-20 during the year ended December 31, 2010. In connection with the adoption of ASU 2010-20 certain additional disclosure are required for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2010, related to the activity within the Company s portfolio segments. These disclosures have been included in these notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Introduction

The following information should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report and with Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Forward-Looking Information

Statements in this document that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, words such as believes expects, intends and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. We caution anticipates that a number of important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf. Such statements contain a number of risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to those associated with: the demand for the equipment types we finance; our significant capital requirements; our inability to obtain the financing we need, or to use internally generated funds, in order to continue originating contracts; the risks of defaults on our leases; our provision for credit losses; our residual interests in underlying equipment; possible adverse consequences associated with our collection policy; the effect of higher interest rates on our portfolio; increasing competition; increased governmental regulation of the rates and methods we use in financing and collecting on our leases and contracts; acquiring other portfolios or companies; dependence on key personnel; changes to accounting standards for equipment leases; adverse results in litigation and regulatory matters, or promulgation of new or enhanced legislation or regulations; and general economic and business conditions. Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect our view only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances. We cannot assure that we will be able to anticipate or respond timely to changes which could adversely affect our operating results. Results of operations in any past period should not be considered indicative of results to be expected in future periods. Fluctuations in operating results may result in fluctuations in the price of our common stock. Statements relating to past dividend payments or our current dividend policy should not be construed as a guarantee that any future dividends will be paid. For a more complete description of the prominent risks and uncertainties inherent in our business, see the risk factors included in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and other documents we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Overview

We are a specialized commercial finance company that provides microticket equipment leasing and other financing services. The average amount financed by TimePayment during 2010 was approximately \$5,800 compared to the 2011 year to date average of \$6,100. LeaseComm historically financed contracts of approximately \$1,900. Our existing portfolio consists of business equipment leased or rented primarily to small commercial enterprises.

We finance the funding of our leases and contracts primarily through cash provided by operating activities and borrowings on our revolving line of credit. On August 2, 2007, we entered into a three-year revolving line of credit with a bank syndicate led by Sovereign Bank (Sovereign) based on qualified TimePayment lease receivables. The total commitment under the facility was originally \$30 million, and was subsequently increased to \$60 million in July 2008, to \$85 million in February 2009, and most recently to \$100 million in connection with a July 2010 amendment. Outstanding borrowings are collateralized by eligible lease contracts and a security interest in all of our other assets. Prior to the July 2010 amendment, outstanding borrowings bore interest at Prime plus 1.75% or at a London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3.75%, in each case subject to a minimum rate of 5.00%. Following the July 2010 amendment, outstanding borrowings bear interest at Prime plus 1.25% or LIBOR plus 3.25%, without being subject to any minimum rate. Under the terms of the facility, loans are Prime Rate Loans, unless we elect LIBOR Loan is not renewed at maturity it automatically converts to a Prime

Rate Loan. As a part of the July 2010 amendment, the maturity date of the facility was extended to August 2, 2013. At our option upon maturity, the unpaid principal balance may be converted to a six-month term loan.

In a typical lease transaction, we originate a lease through our nationwide network of equipment vendors, independent sales organizations and brokers. Upon our approval of a lease application and verification that the lessee has received the equipment and signed the lease, we pay the dealer for the cost of the equipment, plus the dealer s profit margin.

Substantially all leases originated or acquired by us are non-cancelable. During the term of the lease, we are scheduled to receive payments sufficient to cover our borrowing costs and the cost of the underlying equipment and provide us with an appropriate profit. We pass along some of the costs of our leases and contracts by charging late fees, prepayment penalties, loss and damage waiver fees and other service fees, when applicable. Collection fees are imposed based on our estimate of the costs of collection. The loss and damage waiver fees are charged if a customer fails to provide proof of insurance and are reasonably related to the cost of replacing the lost or damaged equipment or product. The initial non-cancelable term of the lease is equal to or less than the equipment s estimated economic life and often provides us with additional revenues based on the residual value of the equipment at the end of the lease. Initial terms of the leases in our portfolio generally range from 12 to 60 months, with an average initial term of 45 months as of December 31, 2010.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note B to the condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report and in Note B to the consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain accounting policies are particularly important to the portrayal of our consolidated financial position and results of operations. These policies require the application of significant judgment by us and as a result, are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. In applying these policies, we make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the related disclosures. We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience, terms of existing contracts, observance of trends in the industry, information obtained from dealers and other sources, and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable and appropriate under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Our critical accounting policies, including revenue recognition, the allowance for credit losses, determining for income taxes, and accounting for share-based compensation are each discussed in more detail in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. We have reviewed those policies and determined that they remain our critical accounting policies and that we did not make any changes in those policies during the six months ended June 30, 2011.

Results of Operations Three months ended June 30, 2011 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010 *Revenue*

	Three Months Ended June 30,			
	2011	Change	2010	
	(Do	llars in thousan	ds)	
Income on financing leases	\$ 9,136	7.4%	\$ 8,509	
Rental income	2,073	8.0	1,920	
Income on service contracts	103	(22.0)	132	
Loss and damage waiver fees	1,220	9.0	1,119	
Service fees and other income	931	(1.1)	941	
Total revenues	\$13,463	6.7%	\$12,621	

Our lease contracts are accounted for as financing leases. At origination, we record the gross lease receivable, the estimated residual value of the leased equipment, initial direct costs incurred and the unearned lease income. Unearned

lease income is the amount by which the gross lease receivable plus the estimated residual value exceeds

the cost of the equipment. Unearned lease income and initial direct costs incurred are amortized over the related lease term using the interest method. Other revenues such as loss and damage waiver fees, service fees relating to the leases and contracts, and rental revenues are recognized as they are earned.

Total revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2011 were \$13.5 million, an increase of \$800,000, or 6.7%, from the three months ended June 30, 2010. The overall increase was due to an increase of \$600,000 in income on financing leases, an increase of \$200,000 in rental income, an increase of \$91,000 in fees and other income, partially offset by a decrease of \$29,000 in income on service contracts. The increase in income on financing leases is a result of the continued growth in new lease originations. The increase in rental income is the result of TimePayment lease contracts coming to term and converting to rentals. Service contact revenue continues to decline since we have not funded any new service contracts since 2004.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

	Three M	Three Months Ended June 30,			
	2011	Change	2010		
	(De	ollars in thousand	ds)		
Selling, general and administrative	\$4,037	12.7%	\$3,581		
As a percent of revenue	30.0%		28.3%		
—					

Our selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses include costs of maintaining corporate functions including accounting, finance, collections, legal, human resources, sales and underwriting, and information systems. SG&A expenses also include service fees and other marketing costs associated with our portfolio of leases and rental contracts. SG&A expenses increased by \$456,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010. The increase was primarily driven by increases in compensation expense of \$147,000, increases of employee benefits of \$145,000, and a \$70,000 increase in rent expense associated with the opening of our California office location. The number of employees as of June 30, 2011 was 129 compared to 113 as of June 30, 2010.

Provision for Credit Losses

	Three Months Ended June 30,		
	2011	2011 Change	
	(Dollars in thousands)		
Provision for credit losses	\$4,251	(23.6)%	\$5,562
As a percent of revenue	31.6%		44.1%

We maintain an allowance for credit losses on our investment in leases, service contracts and rental contracts at an amount that we believe is sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses in our portfolio. Our provision for credit losses decreased by \$1.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010, while net charge-offs decreased by 28.3% to \$4.3 million. The provision was based on providing a general allowance on leases funded during the period and our analysis of actual and expected losses in our portfolio. The decrease in the allowance reflects improvements in delinquency levels of the lease portfolio. *Depreciation and Amortization*

	Three Months Ended June 30,),
	2		Change		2010
		(Dollars	in thousands	5)	
Depreciation fixed assets	\$	121	9.0%	\$	111
Depreciation rental equipment		662	82.4		363
Total depreciation and amortization	\$	783	65.2	\$	474
As a percent of revenue		5.8%			3.8%

Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: MICROFINANCIAL INC - Form 10-Q

Depreciation and amortization expense consists of depreciation on fixed assets and rental equipment. Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciated over their expected useful lives. Certain rental contracts are originated as a result of the renewal provisions of our lease agreements where at the end of lease term, the customer may elect to continue to rent the leased equipment on a month-to-month basis. The rental equipment is recorded at its residual value and depreciated over a term of 12 months. This term represents the estimated life of a previously leased piece

of equipment and is based upon our historical experience. In the event the contract terminates prior to the end of the 12 month period, the remaining net book value is expensed.

Depreciation expense on rental contracts increased by \$299,000 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010. The increase in depreciation is due to the increase in the overall size of our portfolio of rental equipment. Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment increased by \$10,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2011, due to additions acquired during 2011, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011, due to additions acquired during 2011, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011, due to additions acquired during 2011, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010.

Interest Expense

	Three I	Three Months Ended June 30,		
	2011	Change	2010	
	(De	ollars in thousands	s)	
Interest	\$680	(23.2)%	\$885	
As a percent of revenue	5.1%		7.0%	
		11 0000000	C (1 (1	

We pay interest on borrowings under our senior credit facility. Interest expense decreased by \$200,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010. This decrease resulted primarily from our decreased level of borrowings as well as lower interest costs on our revolving line of credit. At June 30, 2011, the balance on our revolving line of credit was \$59.6 million compared to \$59.0 million at June 30, 2010. However, until the July 2010 amendment to the line of credit, a minimum 5% interest rate applied to outstanding borrowings. No such limit exists under the amended current line of credit. At June 30, 2011, \$57.0 million of our loans were LIBOR loans and \$2.6 million of our loans were Prime Rate Loans. The interest rate on our loans at June 30, 2011 was between 3.49% and 4.50%.

Provision for Income Taxes

	Three Months Ended June 30,			
	2011	Change	2010	
	(Dollars in thousands)			
Provision for income taxes	\$1,429	74.7%	\$818	
As a percent of revenue	10.6%		6.5%	
As a percent of income before taxes	38.5%		38.6%	

The provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities and any necessary valuation allowance recorded against net deferred tax assets, involves summarizing temporary differences resulting from the different treatment of items, such as leases, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are recorded on the balance sheet. We then assess the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income or tax carry-back availability and to the extent we believe recovery is more likely than not, a valuation allowance is unnecessary. The provision for income taxes increased by \$611,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010. This increase resulted primarily from the \$1.6 million increase in pre-tax income for the three months ended June 30, 2010 to the three months ended June 30, 2011.

As of December 31, 2010, we had a liability of \$15,000 for unrecognized tax benefits and a liability of \$6,000 for accrued interest and penalties related to various state income tax matters. As of June 30, 2011 we had a liability of \$17,000 for unrecognized tax benefits and a liability of \$4,000 for accrued interest and penalties related to various state income tax matters. The change in the unrecognized tax benefit relates to the closing of an audit and the notification of a new audit. It is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits may change significantly within the next 12 months; however, at this time we are unable to estimate the change.

Our federal income tax returns are subject to examination for tax years ended on or after December 31, 2007 and our state income tax returns are subject to examination for tax years ended on or after December 31, 2006.

Other Operating Data

Dealer funding was \$18.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011, a decrease of \$2.2 million or 10.6%, compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010. We continue to concentrate on our business development efforts, which include increasing the size of our vendor base and sourcing a larger number of applications from those vendors. Receivables due in installments, estimated residual values, net investment in service contracts and investment in rental contracts increased from \$216.9 million at March 31, 2011 to \$218.9 million at June 30, 2011. Net cash provided by operating activities increased by \$3.3 million, or 18.4%, to \$21.2 million during the three months ended June 30, 2011 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2010.

Results of Operations Six months ended June 30, 2011 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010 *Revenue*

	Six Months Ended June 30,			
	2011	Change	2010	
	(Do	(Dollars in thousands)		
Income on financing leases	\$ 18,237	9.7%	\$16,631	
Rental income	4,079	5.2	3,878	
Income on service contracts	211	(22.7)	273	
Loss and damage waiver fees	2,421	8.9	2,223	
Service fees and other income	1,863	(3.7)	1,934	
Total revenues	\$ 26,811	7.5%	\$ 24,939	

Our lease contracts are accounted for as financing leases. At origination, we record the gross lease receivable, the estimated residual value of the leased equipment, initial direct costs incurred and the unearned lease income. Unearned lease income is the amount by which the gross lease receivable plus the estimated residual value exceeds the cost of the equipment. Unearned lease income and initial direct costs incurred are amortized over the related lease term using the interest method. Other revenues such as loss and damage waiver fees, service fees relating to the leases and contracts, and rental revenues are recognized as they are earned.

Total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2011 were \$26.8 million, an increase of \$1.9 million, or 7.5%, from the six months ended June 30, 2010. The overall increase was due to an increase of \$1.6 million in income on financing leases, an increase of \$200,000 in rental income, and a \$100,000 increase in fees and other income, partially offset by a decrease of \$62,000 in service contracts. The increase in income on financing leases is a result of the continued growth in new lease originations. The increase in rental income is the result of TimePayment lease contracts coming to term and converting to rentals. Service contact revenue continues to decline since we have not funded any new service contracts since 2004.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

	Six Months Ended June 30,		
	2011 Change 20		
	(Dollars in thousands)		
Selling, general and administrative	\$7,990	17.3%	\$6,811
As a percent of revenue	29.8%		27.3%

Our selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses include costs of maintaining corporate functions including accounting, finance, collections, legal, human resources, sales and underwriting, and information systems. SG&A expenses also include service fees and other marketing costs associated with our portfolio of leases and rental contracts. SG&A expenses increased by \$1.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010. The increase was primarily driven by increases in payroll and payroll taxes of \$600,000, an increase in employee benefits of \$200,000 and an increase of \$100,000 in rent expense associated with the opening of our California office.

Provision for Credit Losses

	S	Six Months Ended June 30,			
	2011	2011 Change			
		(Dollars in thousand			
Provision for credit losses	\$9,003	(27.9)%	\$12,493		
As a percent of revenue	33.6%		50.1%		
	• , ,• •				

We maintain an allowance for credit losses on our investment in leases, service contracts and rental contracts at an amount that we believe is sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses in our portfolio. Our provision for credit losses decreased by \$3.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010, while net charge-offs decreased by 28.5% to \$9.2 million. The provision is based on providing a general allowance on leases funded during the period and our analysis of actual and expected losses in our portfolio. The decrease in the allowance reflects improvements in delinquency levels of the lease portfolio and a reduction in charge-off levels.

Depreciation and Amortization

	Six Months Ended June 30,			
	2011	Change	2010	
	(Dol	lars in thousand	nds)	
Depreciation fixed assets	\$ 241	6.2%	\$ 227	
Depreciation rental equipment	1,223	81.2	675	
Total depreciation and amortization	\$ 1,464	62.3%	\$ 902	
As a percent of revenue	5.5%		3.6%	

Depreciation and amortization expense consists of depreciation on fixed assets and rental equipment, and the amortization of service contracts. Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciated over their expected useful lives. Certain rental contracts are originated as a result of the renewal provisions of our lease agreements where at the end of lease term, the customer may elect to continue to rent the leased equipment on a month-to-month basis. The rental equipment is recorded at its residual value and depreciated over a term of 12 months. This term represents the estimated life of a previously leased piece of equipment and is based upon our historical experience. In the event the contract terminates prior to the end of the 12 month period, the remaining net book value is expensed.

Depreciation expense on rental contracts increased by \$600,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010. The increase in depreciation is due to the increase in the overall size of our portfolio of rental equipment. Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment increased by \$14,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2011, due to additions acquired during 2011 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010.

Interest Expense

	Six Months Ended June 30,				
	2011	2011 Change			
	(Dollars in thousands)				
Interest	\$1,343	(20.8)%	\$1,696		
As a percent of revenue	5.0%		6.8%		

We pay interest on borrowings under our senior credit facility. Interest expense decreased by \$400,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010. This decrease resulted primarily from our decreased level of borrowings as well as lower interest costs on our revolving line of credit. At June 30, 2011, the balance on our revolving line of credit was \$59.6 million compared to \$59.0 million at June 30, 2010. However, until the July 2010 amendment to the line of credit, a minimum 5% interest rate applied to outstanding

Edgar Filing: MICROFINANCIAL INC - Form 10-Q

borrowings. No such limit exists under the amended current line of credit. At June 30, 2011, \$57.0 million of our loans were LIBOR loans and \$2.6 million of our loans were Prime Rate Loans. The interest rate on our loans at June 30, 2011 was between 3.49% and 4.50%. *Provision for Income Taxes*

		Six Months Ended June 30,			
		2011	2011 Change		
		(De	ollars in thousand	ls)	
Provision for income taxes		\$2,699	130.5%	\$1,171	
As a percent of revenue		10.1%		4.7%	
As a percent of income before taxes		38.5%		38.6%	
	20				

The provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities and any necessary valuation allowance recorded against net deferred tax assets, involves summarizing temporary differences resulting from the different treatment of items, such as leases, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are recorded on the balance sheet. We then assess the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income or tax carry-back availability and to the extent we believe recovery is more likely than not, a valuation allowance is unnecessary. The provision for income taxes increased by \$1.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010. This increase resulted primarily from the \$4.0 increase in pre-tax income.

As of December 31, 2010, we had a liability of \$15,000 for unrecognized tax benefits and a liability of \$6,000 for accrued interest and penalties related to various state income tax matters. As of June 30, 2011 we had a liability of \$17,000 for unrecognized tax benefits and a liability of \$4,000 for accrued interest and penalties related to various state income tax matters. The change in the unrecognized tax benefit relates to the closing of an audit and the opening of a new one. It is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits may change significantly within the next 12 months; however, at this time we are unable to estimate the change.

Our federal income tax returns are subject to examination for tax years ended on or after December 31, 2007 and our state income tax returns are subject to examination for tax years ended on or after December 31, 2006. *Other Operating Data*

Dealer funding was \$37.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, a decrease of \$2.0 million or 5.1%, compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010. We continue to concentrate on our business development efforts, which include increasing the size of our vendor base and sourcing a larger number of applications from those vendors. Receivables due in installments, estimated residual values, net investment in service contracts and investment in rental contracts increased from \$215.7 million at December 31, 2010 to \$218.9 million at June 30, 2011. Net cash provided by operating activities increased by \$6.8 million, or 19.4%, to \$41.8 million during the six months ended June 30, 2011 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010.

Exposure to Credit Losses

The amounts in the table below represent the balance of delinquent receivables on an exposure basis for all leases, rental contracts, and service contracts in our portfolio. An exposure basis aging classifies the entire receivable based on the invoice that is the most delinquent. For example, in the case of a rental or service contract, if a receivable is 90 days past due, all amounts billed and unpaid are placed in the over 90 days past due category. In the case of lease receivables, where the minimum contractual obligation of the lessee is booked as a receivable at the inception of the lease, if a receivable is 90 days past due, the entire receivable, including all amounts billed and unpaid as well as the minimum contractual obligation yet to be billed, will be placed in the over 90 days past due category.

(dollars in thousands)	June 30,	December 31, 2010		
Current	\$164,584	85.1%	\$160,674	84.1%
31-60 days past due	5,535	2.9	6,142	3.2
61-90 days past due	4,026	2.1	4,369	2.3
Over 90 days past due	19,200	9.9	19,882	10.4
Gross receivables due in installments	\$193,345	100.0%	\$191,067	100.0%

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

Our lease and finance business is capital-intensive and requires access to substantial short-term and long-term credit to fund lease originations. Since inception, we have funded our operations primarily through borrowings under our credit facilities, on-balance sheet securitizations, the issuance of subordinated debt, free cash flow and our

initial public offering completed in February 1999. We will continue to require significant additional capital to maintain and expand our funding of leases and contracts, as well as to fund any future acquisitions of leasing companies or portfolios. In the near term, we expect to finance our business utilizing the cash on hand, free cash flow, and our line of credit which matures in August 2013. Additionally, our uses of cash include the payment of interest and principal on borrowings, selling, general and administrative expenses, income taxes and capital expenditures.

For the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, our primary sources of liquidity were cash provided by operating activities and borrowings on our revolving line of credit. We generated cash flow from operations of \$41.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011 compared to \$35.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010. At June 30, 2011, we had approximately \$59.6 million outstanding under our revolving line of credit facility and had available borrowing capacity of approximately \$40.4 million as described below.

We used net cash in investing activities of \$37.9 million during the six months ended June 30, 2011 and \$39.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010. Investing activities primarily relate to the origination of leases.

Net used in financing activities was \$5.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and net cash provided by financing activities was \$5.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010. Financing activities primarily consist of the borrowings and repayments under our revolving line of credit facility and dividend payments.

The maturity date of our revolving line of credit is August 2013, at which time the outstanding loan balance plus interest becomes due and payable. At our option upon maturity, the unpaid principal balance may be converted to a six-month term loan.

Borrowings

We utilize our revolving line of credit to fund the origination and acquisition of leases that satisfy the eligibility requirements established pursuant to the facility. Borrowings outstanding consist of the following:

	June 30, 2011				December			
				Maximum				Maximum
	Amounts	Interest	Unused	Facility	Amounts	Interest	Unused	Facility
(dollars in 000)	Outstanding	Rate	Capacity	Amount	Outstanding	Rate	Capacity	Amount
Revolving line of								
credit facility (1)	\$59,574	3.49-4.50%	\$40,426	\$100,000	\$62,650	3.52-4.50%	\$37,350	\$100,000

⁽¹⁾ The unused capacity is subject to the borrowing base formula.

On August 2, 2007, we entered into a three-year revolving line of credit with a bank syndicate led by Sovereign Bank (Sovereign) based on qualified TimePayment lease receivables. The total commitment under the facility was originally \$30 million, and was subsequently increased to \$60 million in July 2008, to \$85 million in February 2009, and most recently to \$100 million in connection with a July 2010 amendment. Outstanding borrowings are collateralized by eligible lease contracts and a security interest in all of our other assets. Prior to the July 2010 amendment, outstanding borrowings bore interest at Prime plus 1.75% or at a London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3.75%, in each case subject to a minimum rate of 5.00%. Following the July 2010 amendment, outstanding borrowings bear interest at Prime plus 1.25% or LIBOR plus 3.25%, without being subject to any minimum rate. Under the terms of the facility, loans are Prime Rate Loans, unless we elect LIBOR Loans. If a LIBOR Loan is not renewed at maturity it automatically converts to a Prime Rate Loan. As a part of the July 2010 amendment, the maturity date of the facility was extended to August 2, 2013. At our option upon maturity, the unpaid principal balance may be converted to a six-month term loan. At June 30, 2011, \$57.0 million of our loans were LIBOR Loans and \$2.6 million of our loans were Prime Rate Loans. The interest rate on the revolving line of credit was between 3.49% and 4.50% at June 30, 2011. As of June 30, 2011, the qualified lease receivables eligible under the borrowing base exceeded the \$100 million revolving line of credit.

Dividends

On July 20, 2011, we declared a dividend of \$0.05 payable on August 15, 2011 to shareholders of record on August 1, 2011. On April 21, 2011, we declared a dividend of \$0.05 payable on May 13, 2011 to stockholders of record on May 2, 2011. On January 21, 2011 we declared a dividend of \$0.05 payable on February 15, 2011 to stockholders of record on February 1, 2011.

On January 22, 2010 we declared a dividend of \$0.05 payable on February 15, 2010 to shareholders of record on February 1, 2010. On April 20, 2010, we declared a dividend of \$0.05 payable on May 14, 2010 to shareholders of record on May 3, 2010.

Future dividend payments are subject to ongoing review and evaluation by our Board of Directors. The decision as to the amount and timing of future dividends, if any, will be made in light of our financial condition, capital requirements and growth plans, as well as our external financing arrangements and any other factors our Board of Directors may deem relevant. We can give no assurance as to the amount and timing of future dividends. *Share repurchases*

On August 10, 2010, our Board of Directors approved a common stock repurchase program under which we are authorized to purchase up to 250,000 of our outstanding shares from time to time. The repurchases may take place in either the open market or through block trades. The repurchase program will be funded by our working capital and may be suspended or discontinued at anytime. During the quarter ended March 31, 2011 we repurchased and retired 51,883 shares of our common stock under our stock buyback program, at a total cost of \$241,000. During the quarter ended June 30, 2011 we did not repurchase any shares.

Contractual Obligations and Lease Commitments

Contractual Obligations

We have entered into various agreements, such as debt and operating lease agreements that require future payments. For the six months ended June 30, 2011 we had borrowed \$48.7 million against our revolving line of credit and had repaid \$51.8 million. The \$59.6 million of outstanding borrowings as of June 30, 2011 will be repaid by the daily application of TimePayment receipts to our outstanding balance.

Our future minimum cash lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	Thereafter
Operating lease obligations	\$153	\$622	\$644	\$638	\$595	\$1,587

Lease Commitments

We accept lease applications on a daily basis and have a pipeline of applications that have been approved, where a lease has not been originated. Our commitment to lend does not become binding until all of the steps in the lease origination process have been completed, including but not limited to the receipt of a complete and accurate lease document, all required supporting information and successful verification with the lessee. Since we fund on the same day a lease is successfully verified, we have no firm outstanding commitments to lend.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note F of the notes to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for a discussion of the impact of recent accounting pronouncements.

ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The following discussion about our risk management activities includes forward-looking statements that involve risk and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. In the normal course of operations, we also face risks that are either non-financial or non-quantifiable. Such risks principally include credit risk and legal risk, and are not represented in the analysis that follows.

The implicit yield on all of our leases and contracts is on a fixed interest rate basis due to the leases and contracts having scheduled payments that are fixed at the time of origination. When we originate or acquire leases or contracts, we base our pricing in part on the spread we expect to achieve between the implicit yield on each lease or contract and the effective interest rate we expect to incur in financing such lease or contract through our credit facility. Increases in interest rates during the term of each lease or contract could narrow or eliminate the spread, or result in a negative spread.

Given the relatively short average life of our leases and contracts, our goal is to maintain a blend of fixed and variable interest rate obligations which limits our interest rate risk. As of June 30, 2011, we have repaid all of our fixed-rate debt and have \$59.6 million of outstanding variable interest rate obligations under our revolving line of credit.

Our revolving line of credit bears interest at rates which fluctuate with changes in the Prime Rate or LIBOR; therefore, our interest expense is sensitive to changes in market interest rates. The effect of a 10% adverse change in market interest rates, sustained for one year, on our interest expense would be immaterial.

We maintain an investment portfolio in accordance with our investment policy guidelines. The primary objectives of the investment guidelines are to preserve capital, maintain sufficient liquidity to meet our operating needs, and to maximize return. We minimize investment risk by limiting the amount invested in any single security and by focusing on conservative investment choices with short terms and high credit quality standards. We do not use derivative financial instruments or invest for speculative trading purposes.

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures: As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b). Based upon the evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective. Disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission s rules and forms.

Internal control over financial reporting: During the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2011, no changes were made in our internal control over financial reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Part II Other Information

ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings

We are involved from time to time in litigation incidental to the conduct of our business. Although we do not expect that the outcome of any of these matters, individually or collectively, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations, litigation is inherently unpredictable. Therefore, judgments could be rendered, or settlements entered, that could adversely affect our operating results or cash flows in a particular period. We routinely assess all of our litigation and threatened litigation as to the probability of ultimately incurring a liability, and record our best estimate of the ultimate loss in situations where we assess the likelihood of loss as probable. **ITEM 1A. Risk Factors**

For a discussion of the material risks that we face relating to our business, financial performance and industry, as well as other risks that an investor in our common stock may face, see the factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010. The risks described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and elsewhere in this report are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or operating results.

ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011 we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock under our stock buyback program.

ITEM 6. Exhibits

(a) Exhibits index

- 3.1 Restated Articles of Organization, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 in the Registrant s Registration Statement on Form S-1, No. 333-56639, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 1998).
- 3.2 Restated Bylaws, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 in the Registrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2007).
- 31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 101** The following materials from the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2011, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language); (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity as of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity as of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and 2009 and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of text.
- * Filed herewith
- ** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

	MicroFinancial Incorporated
	By: /s/ Richard F. Latour President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: August 15, 2011	 By: /s/ James R. Jackson Jr. Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 27
-right:2px;">	
Issued	
Treasury	
Outstanding	
Preferred Stock	
Common Stock	
Additional Paid-In Capital	
Navient's Subsidiary Investment	
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)	
Retained Earnings	
Treasury Stock	
Total SLM Corporation Equity	
Non-controlling interest	
Total Equity Balance at June 30, 2014	
7,300,000	

423,295,249			
(358,771)			
422,936,478			
\$ 565,000			
\$ 84,659			
\$ 1,071,916			
\$			
\$ (365)			
\$ 20,167			
\$ (3,113)			
\$ 1,738,264			
\$			
\$ 1,738,264			

Net income

Table of Contents

_	
_	
_	
_	
_	
_	
_	
_	
_	
82,926	
_	
82,926	
_	
82,926	
Other comprehen-sive loss, net of tax	
_	
—	
_	

_		
_		
_		
_		
(1,487)		
_		
_		
(1,487)		
_		
(1,487) Total comprehensive income		
_		
_		
_		
_		

_		
_		
_		
_		
_		
_		
81,439		
_		
81,439		

Cash dividends:

Preferred Stock, series A (\$.87 per share)

—
_
_
_
_
_
(2,875)
(2,875)
—
(2,875) Preferred Stock, series B (\$.49 per share)

_
_
_
_
_
(1,975)
_
(1,975)
(1,975)
Dividend equivalent units related to employee stock-based compensation plans

_	
_	
33	
_	
_	
(33)	
_	
_	
_	
_	
Issuance of common shares	
584,787	
_	
584,787	
_	
118	

Edgar Filling. MICROFINANCIAE INC - FOITH TO-Q	
2,047	
_	
_	
_	
2,165	
_	
2,165	
Stock-based compensation expense	
_	
_	
_	
_	
4,505	

_
4,505
4,505
Shares repurchased related to employee stock-based compensation plans
_
(356,622
(356,622)
_
_
_
_
(3,095)
(3,095

)		
(3,095)		
Balance at September 30, 2014		
7,300,000		
423,880,036		
(715,393		
)		
423,164,643		
\$ 565,000		
\$		
84,777		
\$		
1,078,501		
\$		
_		
\$		
(1,852		
)		
\$ 98,210		
\$		
(6,208)		
\$		
1,818,428		
T 1 1 7 0 1 1		

\$

\$ 1,818,428

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

SLM CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (In thousands, except share and per share amounts) (Unaudited)

	Navient's Subsidiary Investment	Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)	Total SLM Corporation Equity	Non-control	ling	Total Equity
Balance at December 31, 2012 Net income (loss)	\$1,068,928 198,743	\$ 14,348	\$1,083,276 198,743	\$ 6,025 (1,020)	\$1,089,301 197,723
Other comprehensive income, net of tax	_	25,687	25,687	_		25,687
Total comprehensive (loss) Net transfers to affiliate Balance at September 30, 2013		 \$ 40,035	224,430 (139,539) \$1,168,167	(1,020)	223,410 (139,539) \$1,173,172

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

SLM CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (In thousands, except share and per share amounts)(Unaudited)

Common Stock Shares

	Preferred Stock Shares	Issued	Treasury	Outstanding	Preferred Stock	Common Stock	Additional Paid-In Capital	Navient's Subsidiary Investment	Accumul Other Compreh Income (Loss)	D
Balance at December 31, 2013	_	_	_	_	\$—	\$—	\$—	\$1,164,495	\$(3,024)	\$-
Net income (loss) Other	_	_		_	_	_		68,173	_	100
comprehensive income, net of tax	_	_	_	—	_			—	1,172	
Total comprehensive income (loss)	_	_	_	_	_		_	_	_	
Net transfers from affiliate Separation	_	_		_	_			479,409	_	
adjustments related to Spin-Off of Navient Corporation	7,300,000	422,790,320	_	422,790,320	565,000	84,558	1,062,519	(1,712,077)	_	
Sale of non-controlling interest		_		—	_	_	_	—		
Cash dividends: Preferred Stock, series A (\$.87 per share)		_	_	_	_			_	_	(4,
Preferred Stock, series B (\$.49 per share)		_	_	_	_		_	_	_	(3,2
Dividend equivalent units related to employee stock-based compensation	_	_	_	_	_	_	41	_	_	(41
plans Issuance of common shares	_	1,089,716	_	1,089,716	_	219	4,391	_	_	—

Stock-based										
compensation			_				11,550		_	
expense										
Shares										
repurchased										
related to										
employee			(715,393)	(715,393) —				_	
stock-based										
compensation										
plans										
Balance at										
September 30,	7,300,000	423,880,036	(715,393)	423,164,643	\$ \$565,000	\$84,777	\$1,078,501	\$—	\$(1,852)	\$9
2014										
See accompanyi	ing notes to	consolidated	financial st	atements.						

SLM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Operating activities	Nine Mont September 2014	
Net income	\$174,068	\$197,723
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in	\$174,008	\$197,725
operating activities:		
Provision for loan losses	55,071	40,081
Tax provision	115,502	122,011
Amortization of FDIC fees		1,046
Amortization of brokered deposit placement fee	7,548	7,128
Amortization of deferred loan origination costs and fees, net	1,446	753
Net amortization (accretion) of discount on investments	433	(6,442)
Depreciation of premises and equipment	2,326	2,977
Amortization and impairment of acquired intangibles	4,145	3,085
Stock-based compensation expense	20,127	12,420
Interest rate swap	1,307	(641)
Gains on sale of loans, net		(192,097)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:	(120,500)	(1)_,0) ()
Net decrease in loans held for sale	6,448	2,674
Origination of loans held for sale	(6,448)	
Increase in accrued interest receivable		(184,590)
(Increase) decrease in other interest-earning assets	(47,836)	
(Increase) decrease in other assets	11,499	
Decrease in income tax payable		(209,362)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable	2,639	
Increase in payable due to Navient	18,114	
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities	30,741	(23,584)
Total adjustments	(412,290)	(190,867)
Total net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	(238,222)	6,856
Investing activities		
Loans acquired and originated	(38,165)	(274,975)
Net proceeds from sales of loans held for investment	1,994,017	2,428,404
Net increase in loans held for investment	(2,932,369	(2,809,567)
Purchases of available-for-sale securities	(55,928)	(33,037)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities	7,337	14,313
Total net cash used in investing activities Financing activities	(1,025,108	(674,862)
Brokered deposit placement fee	(5,533)	
Net decrease in brokered certificates of deposit		(552,908)
Net (decrease) increase in NOW account deposits	,	6,558
Net (decrease) increase in High Yield Savings Deposits	(39,359)	
Net (decrease) increase in Retail Certificates of Deposit	(13,268)	
Net increase in MMDA deposits	862,447	927,997
L	*	,

Net decrease in deposits with entity that is a subsidiary of	(5.633) (122,870)
Navient	(5,055) (122,070)
Special cash contribution from Navient	472,718	—
Net capital contributions from entity that is a subsidiary of	7,448	28,164
Navient	7,770	20,104
Preferred stock dividends paid	(8,078) —
Dividend paid to entity that is a subsidiary of Navient		(120,000)
Dividend paid to entity that is a subsidiary of Navient Net cash provided by financing activities	 650,843	(120,000) 216,783
		· · · · ·

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	2,182,865	1,599,082
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$1,570,378	\$1,147,859
Cash disbursements made for:		
Interest	\$64,987	\$58,573
Income taxes paid	\$294,116	\$209,362
1	. ,	. ,

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial reporting and accounting policies of SLM Corporation ("Sallie Mae," "SLM," the "Company," "we" or "us") conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("GAAP"). In conjunction with the Spin-Off (as herein after defined), our consolidated financial statements are comprised of financial information relating to Sallie Mae Bank (the "Bank"), Upromise, Inc. ("Upromise") and the Private Education Loan origination functions. We use "Private Education Loans" to mean education loans to students or their families that are non-federal loans and loans not insured or guaranteed under the previously existing Federal Family Education Loan Program ("FFELP"). Also included in our financial statements, for periods before the Spin-Off, are certain general corporate overhead expenses allocated to the Company.

On April 30, 2014, we completed our plan to legally separate into two distinct publicly traded entities - an education loan management, servicing and asset recovery business, Navient Corporation ("Navient"), and a consumer banking business, SLM Corporation. The separation of Navient from SLM Corporation (the "Spin-Off") was preceded by an internal corporate reorganization, which was the first step to separate the education loan management, servicing and asset recovery business from the consumer banking business. As a result of a holding company merger under Section 251(g) of the Delaware General Corporation Law ("DGCL"), which is referred to herein as the "SLM Merger," all of the shares of then existing SLM Corporation's common stock were converted, on a 1-to-1 basis, into shares of common stock of New BLC Corporation, a newly formed company that was a subsidiary of pre-Spin-Off SLM Corporation ("pre-Spin-Off SLM"), and, pursuant to the SLM Merger, New BLC Corporation. As part of the internal corporate reorganization, the assets and liabilities associated with the education loan management, servicing and asset recovery business were transferred to Navient, and those assets and liabilities associated with the consumer banking business remained with or were transferred to the newly constituted SLM Corporation. The separation and distribution were accounted for on a substantially tax-free basis.

The timing and steps necessary to complete the Spin-Off and comply with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") reporting requirements, including the replacement of pre-Spin-Off SLM Corporation with our current publicly-traded registrant, have resulted in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 filed with the SEC on February 19, 2014, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on May 12, 2014, providing business results and financial information for the periods reported therein on the basis of the consolidated businesses of pre-Spin-Off SLM. While information contained in those prior reports may provide meaningful historical context for the Company's business, the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 was our first periodic report made on the basis of the post-Spin-Off business of the Company.

At the time of the Spin-Off transaction, we had a targeted starting equity balance of \$1,710 million. To achieve the targeted equity balance we retained \$565 million of preferred stock and approximately \$473 million of cash to offset the obligation attributable to the principal of Series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock, substantially similar to pre-Spin-Off SLM's respective series of preferred stock.

For periods before the Spin-Off, these financial statements are presented on a basis of accounting that reflects a change in reporting entity and have been adjusted for the effects of the Spin-Off. These carve-out financial statements and selected financial information represent only those operations, assets, liabilities and equity that form Sallie Mae on a stand-alone basis. Because the Spin-Off occurred on April 30, 2014, these financial statements include the carved out financial results for the first four months of 2014. All prior period amounts represent carved-out amounts. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries after eliminating the effects of intercompany accounts and transactions.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Allowance for Private Education Loan Losses

We maintain an allowance for loan losses at an amount sufficient to absorb probable losses incurred in our portfolios at the reporting date based on a projection of estimated probable credit losses incurred in the portfolio. We analyze our portfolio to determine the effects various stages of delinquency have on borrower default behavior and ultimate charge-off activity. We estimate the allowance for loan losses for our loan portfolio using a migration analysis of delinquent and current accounts. A migration analysis is a technique used to estimate the likelihood a loan receivable may progress through the various delinquency stages and ultimately charge off. We may also take into account the current and future economic environment and other qualitative factors when calculating the allowance for loan losses.

The evaluation of the allowance for loan losses is inherently subjective, as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant changes. Our default estimates are based on a loss confirmation period (loss confirmation period represents the expected period between a loss event and when management considers the debt to be uncollectible), taking into consideration account management practices that affect the timing of a loss, such as the usage of forbearance.

Prior to the Spin-Off, the Bank exercised its right and sold substantially all of the Private Education Loans it originated that became delinquent or were granted forbearance to one or more of its then affiliates at its fair value. Because of this arrangement, the Bank did not hold many loans in forbearance. As a result, the Bank had very little historical forbearance activity and very few delinquencies.

In connection with the Spin-Off, the agreement under which the Bank previously made these sales was amended so that the Bank now only has the right to require Navient to purchase (at fair value) loans only where (a) the borrower has a lending relationship with both the Bank and Navient ("Split Loans") and (b) the Split Loans either (1) are more than 90 days past due; (2) have been restructured; (3) have been granted a hardship forbearance or more than six months of administrative forbearance; or (4) have a borrower or cosigner who has filed for bankruptcy. At September 30, 2014, we held approximately \$126 million of Split Loans.

Pre-Spin-Off SLM charged off loans when they were 212 days delinquent. As such, default aversion strategies were focused on the final stages of delinquency, from 150 days to 212 days. In connection with the Spin-Off, we changed our charge-off policy for Private Education Loans to charging off loans when they reach 120 days delinquent. As a result of changing our corporate charge-off policy and greatly reducing the number of potentially delinquent loans we sell to Navient, our default aversion strategies must now focus on loans 30 to 120 days delinquent. This change has the effect of accelerating the recognition of losses due to the shorter charge-off period (120 days). In addition, at the time of the Spin-Off, we changed our loss confirmation period from two years to one year to reflect the shorter charge-off policy and our revised servicing practices. These two changes resulted in recognizing a \$14 million net reduction in our allowance for loan losses in second quarter 2014 because we are now only reserving for one year of losses as compared with two years under the prior policy, which more than offset the impact of the shorter charge-off period.

The one-year estimate underlying the allowance for loan losses is subject to a number of assumptions. If actual future performance in delinquency, charge-offs and recoveries are significantly different than estimated, or account management assumptions or practices were to change, this could materially affect the estimate of the allowance for loan losses, the timing of when losses are recognized, and the related provision for loan losses on our consolidated statements of income.

Separately, for our troubled debt restructurings ("TDR") portfolio, we estimate an allowance amount sufficient to cover life-of-loan expected losses through an impairment calculation based on the difference between the loan's basis and the present value of expected future cash flows (which would include life-of-loan default and recovery

assumptions) discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate. Our TDR portfolio is comprised mostly of loans with interest rate reductions and forbearance usage greater than three months.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Securitization Accounting

In the third quarter 2014, we entered into our first securitization transaction. We accounted for this as a sale of loans and we do not consolidate the securitization trust. This securitization used a two-step structure with a special purpose entity that legally isolated the transferred assets from us, even in the event of bankruptcy. The transaction was also structured to ensure the holders of the beneficial interests issued are not constrained from pledging or exchanging their interests, and we do not maintain effective control over the transferred assets. If these criteria had not been met, then the transaction would be accounted for as an on-balance sheet secured borrowing. Our securitization transaction was legally structured to be a sale of assets that isolated the transferred assets from us. If a securitization qualifies as a sale, we then assess whether we are the primary beneficiary of the securitization trust and are required to consolidate such trust. If we are the primary beneficiary then no gain or loss is recognized.

The investors in the securitization trust have no recourse to our assets should there be a failure of the trust to pay when due. Generally, the only recourse the trust has to us is in the event we breach a seller representation or warranty or our duties as master servicer, in which event we agree to repurchase the related loans from the trust. As master servicer, our primary responsibility will be to monitor the performance of the subservicer and find a substitute subservicer in the event the subservicer of the trust defaults.

We did not record a servicing asset or servicing liability related to the securitization transaction we entered into in third quarter 2014 because we determined the master servicing fee we receive is at market rate. Gains on Sale of Loans, net

We participate and sell loans to third parties and affiliates (including entities that were related parties prior to the Spin-off Transaction). These sales may be through whole loan sales or securitization transactions that qualify for sales treatment. These loans were initially recorded as held for investment, and were transferred to held-for-sale immediately prior to sale or securitization. Beginning in April 2012, loans were sold at fair value. Details of these transactions are further discussed in Note 12, "Arrangements with Navient Corporation."

In the third quarter 2014, we sold \$1.2 billion of loans through loan sales and a securitization transaction with third parties. As a result of these loan sales we recorded net gains of \$85 million. In the third quarter 2013, we recorded \$43 million in net gains from the sale of \$0.6 billion of loan sales.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2014, we sold \$1.9 billion of loans through loan sales and a securitization transaction. As a result of these loan sales we recorded net gains of \$121 million. In the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we recorded \$192 million in net gains from the sale of \$2.3 billion of loans. Income Taxes

In connection with the Spin-Off, the Company has become the taxpayer legally responsible for \$283 million of deferred taxes payable (installment payments due quarterly through 2018) in connection with gains recognized by pre-Spin-Off SLM on debt repurchases in prior years. As part of the tax sharing agreement between the Company and Navient, Navient has agreed to fully pay us for these deferred taxes due. An indemnification receivable of \$264 million was recorded, which represents the fair value of the future payments under the agreement based on a discounted cash flow model. We will accrue interest income on the indemnification receivable using the interest method.

The Company also recorded a liability related to uncertain tax positions of \$27 million for which we are indemnified by Navient. If there is an adjustment to the indemnified uncertain tax liability, an offsetting adjustment to the indemnification receivable will be recorded as pre-tax adjustment to the income statement.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

As of the date of the Spin-Off on April 30, 2014, we recorded a liability of \$310 million (\$283 million related to deferred taxes and \$27 million related to uncertain tax positions) and an indemnification receivable of \$291 million (\$310 million less the \$19 million discount). As of September 30, 2014, the liability balance is \$299 million (\$283 million related to deferred taxes and \$16 million related to uncertain tax positions) and the indemnification receivable balance is \$254 million (\$238 million related to deferred taxes and \$16 million related to deferred taxes and \$16 million related to uncertain tax positions). Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On May 28, 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers," which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The ASU will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance when it becomes effective. The new standard is effective on January 1, 2017. Early application is not permitted. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. We have determined that this new guidance will have an immaterial impact on the financial results of the Company.

2. Investments

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale are as follows:

	As of September	30, 2014		
	Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains	Gross Unrealized Losses	Estimated Fair Value
Available for sale: Mortgage-backed securities	\$155,136	\$1,332	\$(2,575) \$153,893
	As of December	31, 2013		
		Gross	Gross	Estimate d Esin
	Amortized Cost	Unrealized Gains	Unrealized Losses	Estimated Fair Value
Available for sale:				
Mortgage-backed securities	\$106,977	\$706	\$(5,578) \$102,105

Our investment portfolio is comprised of mortgage-backed securities issued by Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac with amortized costs of \$76,274, \$67,163 and \$11,699, respectively, at September 30, 2014. We own these securities to meet our requirements under the Community Reinvestment Act. As of September 30, 2014, there were 22 of 51 separate mortgage-backed securities with unrealized losses in our investment portfolio. As of December 31, 2013, there were 20 of 33 separate mortgage-backed securities with unrealized losses in our investment portfolio. As of September 30, 2014, 11 of the 22 securities in a net loss position were issued under Ginnie Mae programs that carry a full faith and credit guarantee from the U.S. Government. The remaining securities in a net loss position carry a principal and interest guarantee by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. We have the ability and the intent to hold these securities for a period of time sufficient for the market price to recover to at least the adjusted amortized cost of the security.

Table of Contents

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 2. Investments (Continued)

The mortgage-backed securities have been pledged to the Federal Reserve Bank ("FRB") as collateral against any advances and accrued interest under the Primary Credit program or any other program sponsored by the FRB. We had \$149,057 and \$103,049 par value of mortgage-backed securities pledged to this borrowing facility at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, as discussed further in Note 6, "Borrowed Funds."

As of September 30, 2014, the amortized cost and fair value of securities, by contractual maturities, were as follows:

Year of Maturity	Amortized	Estimated		
Teal of Maturity	Cost	Fair Value		
2038	\$611	\$662		
2039	12,079	12,888		
2042	28,317	26,719		
2043	74,701	74,307		
2044	39,428	39,317		
Total	\$155,136	\$153,893		

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

3. Loans Held for Investment

Loans Held for Investment consist of Private Education Loans and FFELP Loans.

Our Private Education Loans are made largely to bridge the gap between the cost of higher education and the amount funded through financial aid, federal loans or customers' resources. Private Education Loans bear the full credit risk of the customer. We manage this risk through historical risk-performance underwriting strategies and the addition of qualified cosigners. Private Education Loans generally carry a variable rate indexed to LIBOR; as of September 30, 2014, 83 percent of all Private Education Loans were indexed to LIBOR. We provide incentives for customers to include a cosigner on the loan, and the vast majority of loans in our portfolio are cosigned. We also encourage customers to make payments while in school.

FFELP Loans are insured as to their principal and accrued interest in the event of default subject to a Risk Sharing level based on the date of loan disbursement. When a FFELP Loan first disbursed on and after July 1, 2006 defaults, the federal government guarantees 97 percent of the principal balance plus accrued interest (98 percent on loans disbursed before July 1, 2006) and the holder of the loan is at risk for the remaining amount not guaranteed as a Risk Sharing loss on the loan. FFELP Loans originated after October 1, 1993 are subject to Risk Sharing on loan default claim payments unless the default results from the borrower's death, disability or bankruptcy, in which case the loan is 100 percent guaranteed.

Loans held for investment are summarized as follows:

	September 30,	December 31,	
Drivete Education Leans	2014	2013	
Private Education Loans	\$7,829,420	\$6,563,342	
Deferred origination costs	9,975	5,063	
Allowance for loan losses	(59,973)	(61,763)
Total Private Education Loans, net	7,779,422	6,506,642	
FFELP Loans	1,317,963	1,426,972	
Unamortized acquisition costs, net	3,730	4,081	
Allowance for loan losses	(5,742)	(6,318)
Total FFELP Loans, net	1,315,951	1,424,735	
Loans held for investment, net	\$9,095,373	\$7,931,377	

The estimated weighted average life of Private Education Loans in our portfolio was approximately 6.7 years and 7.0 years at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 3. Loans Held for Investment (Continued)

The average balance and the respective weighted average interest rates are summarized as follows:

	Three Month September 3		Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 Weighted			
	Average Balance	Average Interest Rate	Average Balance	Average Interest Rate		
Private Education Loans	\$7,407,774	8.20 %	\$5,846,241	8.22 %		
FFELP Loans Total portfolio	1,339,748 \$8,747,522	3.23	1,167,174 \$7,013,415	3.38		
	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014					
	Average Balance	Weighted Average Interest Rate	Average Balance	Weighted Average Interest Rate		
Private Education Loans	\$7,394,985	8.19 %	\$5,860,864	8.15 %		
FFELP Loans Total portfolio	1,373,945 \$8,768,930	3.25	1,099,436 \$6,960,300	3.33		

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

4. Allowance for Loan Losses

Our provision for Private Education Loan losses represent the periodic expense of maintaining an allowance sufficient to absorb incurred probable losses, in the held-for-investment loan portfolios. The evaluation of the allowance for loan losses is inherently subjective, as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant changes. We believe the allowance for loan losses is appropriate to cover probable losses incurred in the loan portfolios. See Note 1, "Significant Accounting Policies - Allowance for Private Education Loan Losses" for a more detailed discussion.

Allowance for Loan Losses Metrics

	Allowance for Loan Losses Three Months Ended September 30, 2014					
	FFELP Loans		Private Educa Loans	tion	Total	
Allowance for Loan Losses						
Beginning balance	\$6,212		\$ 54,315		\$60,527	
Total provision	291		14,607		14,898	
Charge-offs ⁽¹⁾	(761)	(4,378)	(5,139)
Student loan sales ⁽²⁾	—		(4,571)	(4,571)
Ending Balance	\$5,742		\$ 59,973		\$65,715	
Allowance:						
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$—		\$ 2,966		\$2,966	
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$5,742		\$ 57,007		\$62,749	
Loans:						
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$—		\$ 13,115		\$13,115	
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$1,317,963		\$ 7,816,305		\$9,134,268	
Charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment (annualized)	0.32	%	0.39	%		
Allowance as a percentage of the ending total loan balance	0.44	%	0.77	%		
Allowance as a percentage of the ending loans in repayment	0.61	%	1.31	%		
Allowance coverage of charge-offs (annualized) Ending total loans, gross Average loans in repayment Ending loans in repayment	1.89 \$1,317,963 \$953,620 \$945,230		3.42 \$ 7,829,420 \$ 4,453,775 \$ 4,575,143			

⁽¹⁾ Prior to the Spin-Off, Private Education Loans were sold to an entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient prior to being charged-off.

⁽²⁾ Represents fair value write-downs on loans sold.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

	Allowance for Loan Losses Three Months Ended September 30, 2013				
	FFELP Loans	Private Educat Loans	ion	Total	
Allowance for Loan Losses					
Beginning balance	\$4,616	\$ 50,868		\$55,484	
Total provision	1,403	19,001		20,404	
Charge-offs ⁽¹⁾	(671)			(671)
Student loan sales ⁽²⁾	—	(15,632)	(15,632)
Ending Balance	\$5,348	\$ 54,237		\$59,585	
Allowance:					
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$—	\$ —		\$—	
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$5,348	\$ 54,237		\$59,585	
Loans:					
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$—	\$—		\$—	
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$1,217,404	\$ 6,214,840		\$7,432,244	
Charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment (annualized)	0.30	<i>‰</i> —	%		
Allowance as a percentage of the ending total loan balance	0.44	% 0.87	%		
Allowance as a percentage of the ending loans in repayment	0.59	% 1.54	%		
Allowance coverage of charge-offs (annualized)	1.99	—			
Ending total loans, gross	\$1,217,404	\$ 6,214,840			
Average loans in repayment	\$896,801	\$ 3,400,620			
Ending loans in repayment	\$902,766	\$ 3,518,997			

⁽¹⁾ Prior to the Spin-Off, Private Education Loans were sold to an entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient prior to being charged-off.

⁽²⁾ Represents fair value write-downs on delinquent loans sold prior to the Spin-Off to an entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient, recorded at the time of sale.

SLM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

	Allowance for Loan Losses Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014					
	FFELP Loans		Private Educat Loans	tion	Total	
Allowance for Loan Losses						
Beginning balance	\$6,318		\$ 61,763		\$68,081	
Total provision	1,482		53,589		55,071	
Charge-offs ⁽¹⁾	(2,058)	(4,378)	(6,436)
Student loan sales ⁽²⁾			(51,001)	(51,001)
Ending Balance	\$5,742		\$ 59,973		\$65,715	
Allowance:						
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$—		\$ 2,966		\$2,966	
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$5,742		\$ 57,007		\$62,749	
Loans:						
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$—		\$ 13,115		\$13,115	
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$1,317,963		\$ 7,816,305		\$9,134,268	
Charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment (annualized)	0.28	%	0.13	%		
Allowance as a percentage of the ending total loan balance	0.44	%	0.77	%		
Allowance as a percentage of the ending loans in repayment	0.61	%	1.31	%		
Allowance coverage of charge-offs (annualized)	2.09		10.27			
Ending total loans, gross	\$1,317,963		\$ 7,829,420			
Average loans in repayment	\$980,733		\$ 4,408,852			
Ending loans in repayment	\$945,230		\$ 4,575,143			

⁽¹⁾ Prior to the Spin-Off, Private Education Loans were sold to an entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient prior to being charged-off.

⁽²⁾ Post-Spin-Off represents fair value write-downs on loans sold. Pre-Spin-Off represents fair value write-downs on delinquent loans sold to an entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient, recorded at the time of sale.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

	Allowance for T Nine Months E FFELP Loans	oan Losses ded September 30, 2 Private Education Loans		2013 Total		
Allowance for Loan Losses						
Beginning balance	\$3,971		\$ 65,218		\$69,189	
Total provision	2,802		37,279		40,081	
Charge-offs ⁽¹⁾	(1,425)			(1,425)
Student loan sales ⁽²⁾			(48,260)	(48,260)
Ending Balance	\$5,348		\$ 54,237		\$59,585	
Allowance:						
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment			\$ —		\$—	
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$5,348		\$ 54,237		\$59,585	
Loans:						
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$—		\$ —		\$—	
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$1,217,404		\$ 6,214,840		\$7,432,244	
Charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment (annualized)	0.23	%	—	%		
Allowance as a percentage of the ending total loan balance	0.44	%	0.87	%		
Allowance as a percentage of the ending loans in repayment	0.59	%	1.54	%		
Allowance coverage of charge-offs (annualized) Ending total loans, gross Average loans in repayment Ending loans in repayment	2.81 \$1,217,404 \$839,085 \$902,766		\$ 6,214,840 \$ 3,580,401 \$ 3,518,997			

⁽¹⁾ Prior to the Spin-Off, Private Education Loans were sold to an entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient prior to being charged-off.

⁽²⁾ Represents fair value write-downs on delinquent loans sold prior to the Spin-Off to an entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient, recorded at the time of sale.

All of our loans are collectively assessed for impairment except for loans classified as TDRs. Prior to the Spin-Off, we did not have TDR loans because the loans were generally sold in the same month that the terms were restructured. Subsequent to May 1, 2014, we have individually assessed \$13.1 million of Private Education Loans as TDRs. When these loans are determined to be impaired, we provide for an allowance for losses sufficient to cover life-of-loan expected losses through an impairment calculation based on the difference between the loan's basis and the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate.

Within the Private Education Loan portfolio, loans greater than 90 days past due are considered to be nonperforming. FFELP Loans are at least 97 percent guaranteed as to their principal and accrued interest by the federal government in the event of default, and therefore, we do not deem FFELP Loans as nonperforming from a credit risk standpoint at any point in their life cycle prior to claim payment, and continue to accrue interest through the date of claim.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Key Credit Quality Indicators

FFELP Loans are at least 97 percent insured and guaranteed as to their principal and accrued interest in the event of default; therefore, there are no key credit quality indicators associated with FFELP Loans. Included within our FFELP portfolio as of September 30, 2014 are \$832 million of FFELP rehabilitation loans. These loans have previously defaulted but have subsequently been brought current according to a loan rehabilitation agreement. The credit performance on rehabilitation loans is worse than the remainder of our FFELP portfolio. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, 62.5 percent and 62.9 percent of our FFELP portfolio consisted of rehabilitation loans. For Private Education Loans, the key credit quality indicators are FICO scores, the existence of a cosigner, the loan status and loan seasoning. The FICO scores are assessed at origination and maintained through the loan's term. The following table highlights the gross principal balance of our Private Education Loan portfolio stratified by key credit quality indicators.

	Private Education Loans Credit Quality Indicators							
	September 30, 2		December 31, 2013					
Credit Quality Indicators:	Balance ⁽¹⁾	% of Balance	•	Balance ⁽¹⁾	% of Balance			
Cosigners:								
With cosigner	\$7,032,973	90	%	\$5,898,751	90	%		
Without cosigner	796,447	10		664,591	10			
Total	\$7,829,420	100	%	\$6,563,342	100	%		
FICO at Origination:								
Less than 670	\$529,649	7	%	\$461,412	7	%		
670-699	1,154,088	15		1,364,286	21			
700-749	2,465,490	31		1,649,192	25			
Greater than or equal to 750	3,680,193	47		3,088,452	47			
Total	\$7,829,420	100	%	\$6,563,342	100	%		
Seasoning ⁽²⁾ :								
1-12 payments	\$2,683,899	34	%	\$1,840,538	28	%		
13-24 payments	1,084,549	14		1,085,393	17			
25-36 payments	515,960	6		669,685	10			
37-48 payments	308,387	4		362,124	6			
More than 48 payments	58,130	_		30,891				
Not yet in repayment	3,178,495	42		2,574,711	39			
Total	\$7,829,420	100	%	\$6,563,342	100	%		
	· •							

⁽¹⁾ Balance represents gross Private Education Loans.

⁽²⁾ Number of months in active repayment for which a scheduled payment was due.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The following tables provide information regarding the loan status and aging of past due loans.

	Private Education Loan Delinquencies					
	September 30,			December 31,		
	2014			2013		
	Balance	%		Balance	%	
Loans in-school/grace/deferment ⁽¹⁾	\$3,178,495			\$2,574,711		
Loans in forbearance ⁽²⁾	75,782			16,314		
Loans in repayment and percentage of each status:						
Loans current	4,515,313	98.7	%	3,933,143	99.0	%
Loans delinquent 31-60 days ⁽³⁾	44,082	1.0		28,854	0.7	
Loans delinquent 61-90 days ⁽³⁾	12,415	0.3		10,280	0.3	
Loans delinquent greater than 90 days ⁽³⁾	3,333			40		
Total private education loans in repayment	4,575,143	100.0	%	3,972,317	100.0	%
Total private education loans, gross	7,829,420			6,563,342		
Private education loans deferred origination costs	9,975			5,063		
Total private education loans	7,839,395			6,568,405		
Private education loans allowance for losses	(59,973)			(61,763)		
Private education loans, net	\$7,779,422			\$6,506,642		
Percentage of private education loans in repayment		58.4	%		60.5	%
Delinquencies as a percentage of private education loans		1.3	%		1.0	%
in repayment		1.5	70		1.0	70
Loans in forbearance as a percentage of loans in repayment and forbearance		1.6	%		0.4	%
repayment and forbearance						

Deferment includes customers who have returned to school or are engaged in other permitted educational activities ⁽¹⁾and are not yet required to make payments on the loans (e.g., residency periods for medical students or a grace period for bar exam preparation).

Loans for customers who have requested extension of grace period generally during employment transition or who (2) have temporarily ceased making full payments due to hardship or other factors, consistent with established loan program servicing policies and procedures.

(3) The period of delinquency is based on the number of days scheduled payments are contractually past due.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Accrued Interest Receivable

The following table provides information regarding accrued interest receivable on our Private Education Loans. The table also discloses the amount of accrued interest on loans greater than 90 days past due as compared to our allowance for uncollectible interest. The allowance for uncollectible interest exceeds the amount of accrued interest on our 90 days past due portfolio for all periods presented.

Private Education Loan Accrued Interest Receivable

	Total Interest Receivable	Greater than 90 days Past Due	Allowance for Uncollectible Interest
September 30, 2014	\$430,299	\$142	\$ 3,250
December 31, 2013	\$333,857	\$1	\$ 4,076

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

5. Deposits

The following table summarizes total deposits at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

	September 30,	December 31,
	2014	2013
Deposits - interest bearing	\$9,101,491	\$8,946,514
Deposits - non-interest bearing	71,531	55,036
Total deposits	\$9,173,022	\$9,001,550

Interest Bearing

Interest bearing deposits as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 consisted of non-maturity savings deposits and brokered and retail certificates of deposit, as discussed further below, and brokered money market deposits. These deposit products are serviced by third party providers. Placement fees associated with the brokered certificates of deposit are amortized into interest expense using the effective interest rate method. We recognized placement fee expense of \$2,326 and \$2,249 for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and \$7,548 and \$7,128 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We paid \$5,533 in fees to third party brokers related to these certificates of deposit during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014. No fees were paid to third party brokers related to these certificates during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013.

In the past, we offered debit cards associated with interest bearing consumer deposit ("NOW") accounts to facilitate the distribution of financial aid refunds and other payables to students. These debit cards were serviced by third party providers. As of April 30, 2014, we no longer offer these debit cards.

Interest bearing deposits at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are summarized as follows:

	September 30, 20	14	December 31, 2013	3
	Amount	QtrEnd Weighted Average Stated Rate	Veighted Amount	
Money market	\$4,053,209	1.24 9	6 \$3,212,889	0.65 %
Savings	704,383	0.81	743,742	0.81
NOW			18,214	0.12
Certificates of deposit	4,343,899	1.11	4,971,669	1.39
Deposits - interest bearing	\$9,101,491		\$8,946,514	

As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, there were \$288,791 and \$159,637 of deposits exceeding Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurance limits. Accrued interest on deposits was \$15,736 and \$13,097 at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Money market deposits with affiliates

Our Upromise subsidiary maintains a money market deposit at the Bank which totaled \$289,344 and \$293,040 at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, which was interest bearing. Interest expense incurred on these deposits during the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled \$65 and \$64, respectively and for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled \$182 and \$255, respectively. The Company also

Table of Contents

maintains a money market deposit at the Bank which totaled \$273,341 at September 30, 2014 and \$0 at December 31, 2013.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 5. Deposits (Continued)

Non Interest Bearing

Non interest bearing deposits were \$71,531 and \$55,036 as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. For both periods these were comprised of money market accounts. The September 30, 2014 balance includes \$226 related to our Employee Stock Purchase Plan account. See Note 11, "Stock Based Compensation Plans and Arrangements" for additional details regarding this plan.

6. Borrowed Funds

The Bank maintains discretionary uncommitted Federal Funds lines of credit with various correspondent banks, which totaled \$100,000 at September 30, 2014. The interest rate charged to the Bank on these lines of credit is priced at Fed Funds plus a spread at the time of borrowing, and is payable daily. The Bank did not utilize these lines of credit in the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

The Bank established an account at the FRB to meet eligibility requirements for access to the Primary Credit borrowing facility at the FRB's Discount Window ("Window"). The Primary Credit borrowing facility is a lending program available to depository institutions that are in generally sound financial condition. All borrowings at the Window must be fully collateralized. We can pledge asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities, as well as FFELP consolidation and Private Education Loans to the FRB as collateral for borrowings at the Window. Generally, collateral value is assigned based on the estimated fair value of the pledged assets. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the lendable value of our collateral at the FRB totaled \$1,522,172 and \$900,217, respectively. The interest rate charged to us is the discount rate set by the FRB. We did not utilize this facility in the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We maintain an overall interest rate risk management strategy that incorporates the use of derivative instruments to minimize the economic effect of interest rate changes. Our goal is to manage interest rate sensitivity by modifying the repricing frequency and underlying index characteristics of certain balance sheet assets and liabilities so the net interest margin is not, on a material basis, adversely affected by movements in interest rates. We do not use derivative instruments to hedge credit risk associated with debt we issued. As a result of interest rate fluctuations, hedged assets and liabilities will appreciate or depreciate in market value. Income or loss on the derivative instruments that are linked to the hedged assets and liabilities will generally offset the effect of this unrealized appreciation or depreciation for the period the item is being hedged. We view this strategy as a prudent management of interest rate sensitivity. Although we use derivatives to offset (or minimize) the risk of interest rate changes, the use of derivatives does expose us to both market and credit risk. Market risk is the chance of financial loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and market liquidity. Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not perform its obligations under a contract and it is limited to the loss of the fair value gain in a derivative that the counterparty owes us. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, we owe the counterparty and, therefore, have no credit risk exposure to the counterparty; however, the counterparty has exposure to us. We minimize the credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with highly rated counterparties that are reviewed regularly by our Credit Department. We also maintain a policy of requiring that all derivative contracts be governed by an International

Swaps and Derivative Association Master Agreement. Depending on the nature of the derivative transaction, bilateral collateral arrangements generally are required as well. When we have more than one outstanding derivative transaction with the counterparty, and there exists legally enforceable netting provisions with the counterparty (i.e., a legal right to offset receivable and payable derivative contracts), the "net" mark-to-market exposure, less collateral the counterparty has posted to us, represents exposure with the counterparty. When there is a net negative exposure, we consider our exposure to the counterparty to be zero. At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had a net positive exposure (derivative gain positions to us less collateral which has been posted by counterparties to us) related to derivatives of \$42,149 and \$3,517, respectively.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 7. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

The derivative instruments that we use as part of our interest rate risk management strategy are interest rate swaps. The accounting for derivative instruments requires that every derivative instrument be recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value. As more fully described below, if certain criteria are met, derivative instruments may be classified and accounted for by us as either fair value or cash flow hedges. If these criteria are not met, the derivative financial instruments are accounted for as trading.

Fair Value Hedges

Fair value hedges are generally used by us to hedge the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognized fixed rate asset or liability. We enter into interest rate swaps to economically convert fixed rate assets into variable rate assets and fixed rate debt into variable rate debt. For fair value hedges, we generally consider all components of the derivative's gain and/or loss when assessing hedge effectiveness and generally hedge changes in fair values due to interest rates.

Cash Flow Hedges

We use cash flow hedges to hedge the exposure to variability in cash flows of floating rate deposits. This strategy is used primarily to minimize the exposure to volatility in cash flows from future changes in interest rates. Gains and losses on the effective portion of a qualifying hedge are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and ineffectiveness is recorded immediately to earnings. In assessing hedge effectiveness, generally all components of each derivative's gains or losses are included in the assessment. We hedge exposure to changes in cash flows due to changes in interest rates or total changes in cash flow.

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive income related to derivatives will be reclassified to interest expense as interest payments are made on our variable rate deposits. During the next twelve months, we estimate that \$20.5 million will be reclassified as an increase to interest expense.

Trading Activities

When derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, they are accounted for at fair value with all changes in fair value recorded through earnings. All our derivative instruments entered into after December 31, 2013, with a maturity of less than 3 years, are economically hedging risk but do not receive hedge accounting treatment. Trading derivatives also include any hedges that originally received hedge accounting treatment, but lost hedge accounting treatment due to failed effectiveness testing, as well as the activity of certain derivatives prior to them receiving hedge accounting treatment.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 7. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of Derivative Financial Statement Impact

The following tables summarize the fair values and notional amounts of all derivative instruments at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and their impact on earnings and other comprehensive income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

Impact of De	rivatives on	Cash Flow		Fair Value	U	Trading September	December	Total September	December
		30,	31,	30,	31,	30,	31,	30,	31,
		2014	2013	2014	2013	2014	2013	2014	2013
	Hedged								
Fair Values ⁽¹	Risk								
	Exposure								
Derivative Assets: ⁽²⁾ Interest rate swaps Derivative Liabilities: ⁽²⁾	Interest rate	\$—	\$—	\$655	\$6,335	\$279	\$426	\$934	\$6,761
Interest rate swaps	Interest rate	(3,464)		(11,515)	(6,149)	(1,350)		(16,329)	(6,149)
Total net derivatives		\$(3,464)	\$—	\$(10,860)	\$186	\$(1,071)	\$426	\$(15,395)	\$612

Fair values reported are exclusive of collateral held and pledged and accrued interest. Assets and liabilities are (1) presented without consideration of master netting agreements. Derivatives are carried on the balance sheet based on net position by counterparty under master netting agreements, and classified in other assets or other liabilities depending on whether in a net positive or negative position.

(2) The following table reconciles gross positions with the impact of master netting agreements to the balance sheet classification:

Gross position	Other Assets September 30, 2014 \$934		December 31, 2013 \$6,761		Other Liabilities September 30, 2014 \$(16,329)	December 31, 2013 \$(6,149)
Impact of master netting agreement	(934)	(4,981)	934		4,981	
Derivative values with impact of master netting agreements (as carried on balance sheet)			1,780		(15,395)	(1,168)
Cash collateral (held) pledged ⁽¹⁾ Net position	(450 \$(450		(5,190 \$(3,410))	46,377 \$30,982		40 \$(1,128)

Table of Contents

(1) Cash collateral amount calculations include outstanding accrued interest payable/receivable.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 7. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

Notional Values	Cash Flow September 30, 2014	December 31, 2013	Fair Value September 30, 2014	December 31, 2013	Trading September 30, 2014	December 31, 2013	Total September 30, 2014	December 31, 2013
Interest rate swaps	\$1,100,226	\$—	\$2,448,023	\$2,089,624	\$678,967	\$575,131	\$4,227,216	\$2,664,755

Impact of Derivatives on the Consolidated Statements of Income

	Three Months September 30	rree Months Ended Nine Months E eptember 30, September 30,		
	2014	2013	2014	2013
Fair Value Hedges Interest rate swaps:				
Hedge ineffectiveness gains (losses) recorded in earnings	\$1,238	\$(393	\$1,489	\$(71)
Realized gains recorded in interest expense	3,835	6,804	14,081	22,311
Total	\$5,073	\$6,411	\$15,570	\$22,240
Cash Flow Hedges Interest rate swaps:				
Hedge ineffectiveness losses recorded in earnings	(303) —	(303) —
Realized losses recorded in interest expense	(3,587) —	(3,587) —
Total	\$(3,890) \$—	\$(3,890) \$—
Trading Interest rate swaps:				
Interest reclassification Change in fair value of	\$(1,170) \$346	\$(3,138) \$973
future interest payments recorded in earnings	5,636	345	(2,870) (47)
Total ⁽¹⁾	4,466 \$5,649	691 \$7,102	(6,008 \$5,672) 926 \$23,166

(1) Amounts included in "gains (losses) on derivatives and hedging activities, net."

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 7. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact of Derivatives on the Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity							
	Three Month	is Ended	Nine Months Ended				
	September 3	0,	September 30,				
	2014	2013	2014	2013			
Amount of loss recognized in other comprehensive income	\$(5,470) \$—	\$(5,470) \$—			
Amount of loss reclassified in interest expense ⁽¹⁾	3,587		3,587	—			
Total change in other comprehensive income for unrealized losses on derivatives	\$(1,883) \$—	\$(1,883) \$—			

(1) Amounts included in "realized gains (losses) recorded in interest expense" in the "Impact of Derivatives on the Consolidated

Statements of Income" table.

Cash Collateral

Cash collateral held related to derivative exposure between the Company and its derivatives counterparties was \$450 and \$5,190 at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Collateral held is recorded in "Other Liabilities." Cash collateral pledged related to derivative exposure between the Company and its derivatives counterparties was \$46,377 and \$40 at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. 8. Stockholders' Equity

Preferred Stock

In connection with the Spin-Off, the Company, by reason of a statutory merger, succeeded pre-Spin-Off SLM as the issuer of Series A Preferred Stock and the Series B Preferred Stock, substantially similar to pre-Spin-Off SLM's respective series of preferred stock. At September 30, 2014, we had outstanding 3.3 million shares of 6.97 percent Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, Series A (the "Series A Preferred Stock") and 4.0 million shares of Floating-Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series B (the "Series B Preferred Stock"). Neither series has a maturity date but can be redeemed at our option. Redemption would include any accrued and unpaid dividends up to the redemption date. The shares have no preemptive or conversion rights and are not convertible into or exchangeable for any of our other securities or property. Dividends on both series are not mandatory and are paid quarterly, when, as, and if declared by the Board of Directors. Holders of Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative, quarterly cash dividends based on 3-month LIBOR plus 170 basis points per annum in arrears. Upon liquidation or dissolution of the Company, holders of the Series A and Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to receive \$50 and \$100 per share, respectively, plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends for the then current quarterly dividend period, if any, pro rata, and before any distribution of assets are made to holders of our common stock.

Common Stock

Our shareholders have authorized the issuance of 1.125 billion shares of common stock (par value of \$.20). At September 30, 2014, 423 million shares were issued and outstanding and 39 million shares were unissued but encumbered for outstanding stock options, restricted stock units and dividend equivalent units for employee compensation and remaining authority for stock-based compensation plans.

Post Spin-Off, we do not intend to initiate a publicly announced share repurchase program as a means to return capital to shareholders. We only expect to repurchase common stock acquired in connection with taxes withheld in connection with award exercises and vesting under our employee stock based compensation plans. The following table summarizes our common share repurchases and issuances associated with these programs.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

8. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

	Three Months Ended		Nine Mont	hs Ended
	September	r 30,	September	30,
(Shares and per share amounts in actuals)	2014	2013	2014	2013
Shares repurchased related to employee stock-based compensation plans ⁽¹⁾	356,622	251,570	715,393	5,616,933
Average purchase price per share Common shares issued ⁽²⁾	\$8.68 584,787	\$24.73 326,789	\$8.68 1,089,716	\$21.23 8,600,008

(1) Comprises shares withheld from stock option exercises and vesting of restricted stock for employees' tax

withholding obligations and shares tendered by employees to satisfy option exercise costs.

⁽²⁾ Common shares issued under our various compensation and benefit plans.

The closing price of our common stock on September 30, 2014 was \$8.56.

Investment with entities that are now subsidiaries of Navient

Prior to the Spin-Off, there were transactions between us and affiliates of pre-Spin-Off SLM that are now subsidiaries of Navient. As part of the carve-out, these expenses were included in our results even though the actual payments for the expenses were paid by the aforementioned affiliates. As such, amounts equal to these payments have been treated as equity contributions in the table below. Certain payments made by us to these affiliates prior to the Spin-Off transaction were treated as dividends.

Net transfers (to)/from the entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient are included within Navient's subsidiary investment on the consolidated statements of changes in equity. The components of the net transfers (to)/from the entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient are summarized below:

entry that is now a substance of the tent are	Sammanzea				
	Three Montl	ns Ended	Nine Months	Ended	
	September 3	0,	September 3	0,	
	2014	2013	2014	2013	
Capital contributions:					
Loan origination activities	\$—	\$35,092	\$32,452	\$93,721	
Loan sales		2	45	27	
Corporate overhead activities		15,321	21,216	48,436	
Other		(1,766) 492,368	(1,032)
Total capital contributions		48,649	546,081	141,152	
Dividend				(120,000)
Corporate push-down		(5,726) 4,977	(99)
Net change in income tax accounts		(58,025) 15,659	(58,025)
Net change in receivable/payable		(68,978) (87,277)	(103,131)
Other			(31)	564	
Total net transfers from/(to) the entity that is now a subsidiary of Navient	\$—	\$(84,080) \$479,409	\$(139,539)

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 8. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

Capital Contributions

During the first four months of 2014 and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, pre-Spin-Off SLM contributed capital to the Company by funding loan origination activities, providing corporate overhead functions and other activities.

Capital contributed for loan origination activities reflects the fact that loan origination functions were conducted by a subsidiary of pre-Spin-Off SLM (now a subsidiary of Navient). The Company did not pay for the costs incurred by pre-Spin-Off SLM in connection with these functions. The costs eligible to be capitalized are recorded on the respective balance sheets and the costs not eligible for capitalization have been recognized as expenses in the respective statements of income.

Certain general corporate overhead expenses of the Company were incurred and paid for by pre-Spin-Off SLM.

Corporate Push-Down

The consolidated balance sheets include certain assets and liabilities that have historically been held at pre-Spin-Off SLM but which are specifically identifiable or otherwise allocable to the Company. The cash and cash equivalents held by pre-Spin-Off SLM at the corporate level were not allocated to the Company for any of the periods presented.

Receivable/Payable with Affiliate

Pre-Spin-Off, all significant intercompany payable/receivable balances between the Company and pre-Spin-Off SLM are considered to be effectively settled for cash in the combined financial statements at the time the transaction is recorded.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

9. Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share ("EPS") are calculated using the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each period. The determination of the weighted-average shares and diluted potential common shares for pre-Spin-Off periods are based on the activity at pre-Spin-Off SLM. A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS calculations follows.

	Three Months ended September 30,		Nine months ended September 30,	
(In thousands, except per share data) Numerator:	2014	2013	2014	2013
Net income attributable to SLM Corporation	\$82,926	\$49,390	\$174,502	\$198,743
Preferred stock dividends	4,850	—	8,078	
Net income attributable to SLM Corporation common stock	\$78,076	\$49,390	\$166,424	\$198,743
Denominator:				
Weighted average shares used to compute basic EPS	423,079	436,109	424,187	442,208
Effect of dilutive securities:				
Dilutive effect of stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units $^{(1)(2)}$	8,525	8,830	8,137	8,229
Weighted average shares used to compute diluted EPS	431,604	444,939	432,324	450,437
Basic earnings per common share attributable to SLM Corporation:	\$0.18	\$0.11	\$0.39	\$0.45
Diluted earnings per common share attributable to SLM Corporation:	\$0.18	\$0.11	\$0.38	\$0.44

Includes the potential dilutive effect of additional common shares that are issuable upon exercise of outstanding
 (1) stock options, non-vested deferred compensation and restricted stock, restricted stock units, and the outstanding commitment to issue shares under the ESPP, determined by the treasury stock method.

For the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, securities covering approximately 3 million and 3 million shares, respectively were outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share

(2) because they were anti-dilutive. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, securities covering approximately 3 million and 4 million shares, respectively, were outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

10. Fair Value Measurements

We use estimates of fair value in applying various accounting standards for our financial statements.

We categorize our fair value estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of price transparency utilized in measuring financial instruments at fair value. For additional information regarding our policies for determining fair value and the hierarchical framework, see Note 1, "Significant Accounting Policies - Fair Value Measurement" in our historical carved out audited financial statements filed with the SEC on Form 8-K on May 6, 2014, for a full discussion.

The following table summarizes the valuation of our financial instruments that are marked-to-market on a recurring basis.

	Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring BasisSeptember 30, 2014December 31, 2013							
	Level 1	-	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Assets								
Mortgage-backed securities	\$—	\$153,893	\$—	\$153,893	\$—	\$102,105	\$—	\$102,105
Derivative instruments		934	_	934	_	6,761		6,761
Total	\$—	\$154,827	\$—	\$154,827	\$—	\$108,866	\$—	\$108,866
	Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis							
				December 31, 2013				
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Liabilities								
Derivative instruments Total	\$— \$—	\$(16,329) \$(16,329)		\$(16,329) \$(16,329)		\$(6,149) \$(6,149)		\$(6,149) \$(6,149)

The following table summarizes the change in balance sheet carrying value associated with level 3 financial instruments carried at fair value on a recurring basis for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013. There were no financial instruments categorized as level 3 at September 30, 2014.

September 30, 2013		
Three	Nine Months Ended	
Months		
Ended		
\$578,783	\$532,155	
3,466	45,492	
	_	
2,177	6,779	
	Three Months Ended \$578,783 3,466	

Proceeds from sale		_
Transfers in and/or out of level 3		
Balance, end of period ⁽¹⁾	\$584,426	\$584,426
Change in unrealized gains/(losses) relating to	\$3.466	\$45,492
instruments still held at the reporting date	φ,,+00	ψτ3,τ72

(1) In October 2013, we sold our asset-backed security portfolio, and as such, we no longer hold asset-backed securities in our investment portfolio.

SLM CORPORATION NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise noted) 10. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following table summarizes the fair values of our financial assets and liabilities, including derivative financial instruments.

	September 30, 2014			December 31, 2013		
	Fair Value	Carrying Value	Difference	Fair Value	Carrying Value	Difference
Earning assets						
Loans held for investment, net	\$9,709,012	\$9,095,373	\$613,639	\$8,439,068	\$7,931,377	\$507,691
Cash and cash equivalents	1,570,378	1,570,378		2,182,865	2,182,865	
Available-for-sale investments	153,893	153,893		102,105	102,105	
Accrued interest receivable	453,522	453,522	—	356,283	356,283	